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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Hudson’s Bay Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated diahrstatements of Hudson's Bay Company, which adsepthe
consolidated balance sheets as at February 1, Fébdyary 2, 2013 and January 29, 2012, and theotidated statements
of loss, consolidated statements of comprehensiss, Iconsolidated statements of shareholders’ yequil consolidated
statements of cash flows for the 52 weeks endedubep 1, 2014 and 53 weeks ended February 2, 28d3asummary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatoformation.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Fiancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation amdofesentation of these consolidated financetlesbhents in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standardsd dor such internal control as management detexsnia necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financitleshents that are free from material misstatenvemether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alitsa¥We conducted our
audits in accordance with Canadian generally aeceptuditing standards. Those standards requirewteatomply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the aoditbtain reasonable assurance about whethewtisolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaiia evidence about the amounts and disclosurdhenconsolidated

financial statements. The procedures selected deperthe auditor’'s judgment, including the assesgmoé the risks of

material misstatement of the consolidated finansi@tements, whether due to fraud or error. In ngkihose risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal comélevant to the entity’s preparation and fair preation of the

consolidated financial statements in order to dealgdit procedures that are appropriate in theigistances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectigertd the entity’s internal control. An audit aiscludes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used andedonableness of accounting estimates made bggaarent, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consaddid financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedr audits is sufficient and appropriate tojide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagiresent fairly, in all material respects, theaficial position of Hudson’s
Bay Company as at February 1, 2014, February 23 20 January 29, 2012 and its financial perforraeaared its cash
flows for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014 a@hdvéeks ended February 2, 2013 in accordance witrrational

Financial Reporting Standards.

Nelodly LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Atamis
Licensed Public Accountants

April 2, 2014
Toronto, Canada



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS

For the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014 and 53 weadnded February 2, 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars, except per share ammts)

February 1, February 2,
2014 2013
(restated — see note 2(z))
Notes (Fiscal 2013) (Fiscal 2012)

Retail sales..........oovvvviiiiiiiiiiieeeceeecce e 5,223.4 4,077.0
COoSt Of SAIES ... 10 (3,216.8) (2,487.0)
Selling, general and administrative expenses....... (1,823.9) (1,370.4)
Depreciation and amortization..............cccceeevveen... 5 (175.6) (104.1)
Operating iNCOME........cooviiiiieeeiiiieciee e 7.1 1155
Total interest expense, Net ........ccvvvveeevvicieeneeneennn (95.2) (97.1)
Acquisition-related finance costs...........c.cccccoee.. (166.1) —
FINANCE COSIS...ccciiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeee e 6 (261.3) (97.1)
(Loss) earnings before income tax — continuing

(o] o 1T = 110 o LS U PRRR (254.2) 18.4
Income tax benefit ...........eeeeeiiiiiiiia s 7 78.5 9.4
Net (loss) earnings for the year — continuing

(o] o 1T = 110 o LS U PRRR (175.7) 27.8
Net loss for the year — discontinued operations, ne

(0] It T 28 (82.4) (62.9)
Net [0SS for the year........ccuvvveeiiiiiiieiee e (258.1) (35.1)
Basic net (loss) earnings per common share...... 21
Continuing OPErationS...........cocvverrrreereesrneee e (2.30) 0.26
Discontinued operations ............ccceeeveimvemiieeeeennns (0.61) (0.59)

(1.91) (0.33)
Diluted net (loss) earnings per common share.... 21
Continuing OPErationS.........c.cocvveirreeereesnneee e (1.33) 0.26
Discontinued Operations ............ccceeeeeiccemmieeeeeennne (0.61) (0.59)
(1.94) (0.33)

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014 and 53 weadnded February 2, 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars)

February 1, February 2,
2014 2013
(restated — see note 2(z))
(Fiscal 2013) (Fiscal 2012)
NELIOSS .. utiiiiei e (258.1) (35.1)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Item that will not be reclassified to earnings or bss:
Net actuarial gain (loss) of employee benefit plaret of
taxes of $15.6 (2012: $7.6) ..cccveveverimviemeimee e 44.8 (20.9)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to eaimgs or
loss:
Currency translation adjustment... 160.7 a.7)
Net loss on net investment hedge, net of taxegdf $
(2022: Nl ceeeeeiieieee e (53.6) —
Net gain (loss) on derivatives designated as dash f
hedges, net of taxes of $3.8 (2012: $0.3) . cceuunrve.. 9.6 (0.8)

Reclassification to non-financial assets of nesésson

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, net of

taxes of $1.6 (2012: $0.1) ....oevvveivirieeeee e 4.3) (0.3)
Reclassification to earnings of net (losses) gams

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, net of

taxes of $1.1 (2012: $0.3) ...eeevereieireieemeee e (3.0) 0.7
Other comprehensive income (I0SS) .........oceeeeeceeiiiiiieeeeennne 154.2 (23.0)
Total comprehensive [0SS..........oovvivviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee (103.9) (58.1)

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014 and 53 wseatndedFebruary 2, 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI")

Currency Net Cash Total
Share Retained Contributed Translation Employee Investment Flow Total Shareholders’
Notes  Capital Earnings Surplus Adjustment  Benefits Hedge Hedges AOCI Equity

As at January 28, 2012..... 2.2 938.1 60.6 (9.8) (35.9) — 0.7 (45.0) 955.9
Impact of change in

accounting policy........... 2(2) — (5.0) — — 55 — — 55 05
As at January 29, 2012

(restated) 2.2 933.1 60.6 (9.8) (30.4) — 0.7 (39.5) 956.4
Comprehensive loss

(restated)..........ccooeveu. — (35.1) — .7) (20.9) — (0.4) (23.0) (58.1)
Share based compensatiaon 8.5 — (28.1) — — — — — (19.6)
Issuance of common shares 20 2354 — — — — — — — 2354
Dividends.........cccocveiiiennen. 20 — (101.1) — — — — — — (101.1)
As at February 2, 2013

(restated)........cocoviie 246.1 796.9 325 (11.5) (51.3) — 03  (62.5) 1,013.0
Comprehensive loss.......... — (258.1) — 160.7 44.8 (53.6) 23 1542 (103.9)
Share based compensation 19 — — 10.6 — — — — — 10.6
Issuance of common shares 20 1,173.9 — — — — — — — 1,173.9
Dividends..........cccovevennene. 20 — (42.9) — — — — — — (42.9)
As at February 1, 2014...... 1,420.0 495.9 43.1 149.2 (6.5) (53.6) 2.6 91.7 2,050.7

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at February 1, 2014, February 2, 2013 and Janugr29, 2012
(millions of Canadian dollars)

(restated — note 2(z))

February 1, February 2, January 29,
2014 2013 2012

Notes (Fiscal 2013) (Fiscal 2012) (Fiscal 2011)
ASSETS
CASH e 8 20.8 48.3 42.4
Trade and other receivables .............oo e, 9 137.2 74.3 124.0
INVENTOIIES ...t emmme e et s e e e e e e e eaeeeees 10 2,025.5 994.3 1,814.2
FINANCIAI SSELS ....eeiiiiiiiiiiiiie et et 18 8.3 3.1 5.7
Other CUITENt ASSELS ......uvviiieiiiiiiieee e e 71.4 31.1 20.9
Income taxes recoverable ..o 22.9 — —
Assets of discontinued Operations ............ccooeeiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 28 2.3 268.6 —
Total CUIMTENE @SSELS. . iiiiiiiiiiiiiee et 2,288.4 1,419.7 2,007.2
Property, plant and equipmeNt............veeeccceeeeieiniie e 11 4,110.4 1,335.0 1,401.1
INtANGIDIE ASSELS.......viiiiiiiiiiiieee e s e 12 981.4 233.0 224.6
GOOAWIIL ...t e e e e e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ee e 12 213.6 — —
Pensions and employee benefitS ..........ccccviiiiimniii e, 17 72.2 38.3 91.0
Deferred tax aSSetS.......ooviiiiiiiiii e e 7 248.7 209.5 257.5
Other ASSEIS...uiiiiiiiiiiii et mreeee et 12.3 12.1 12.1
TOtAl ASSEIS .. iiiiiiiiieieeeeee et ————— e aaaaas 7,927.0 3,247.6 3,993.5
LIABILITIES
Loans and DOIMOWINGS .......eeiieiiiiiiiiiiemmnmeee e 14 531.6 132.1 291.0
Trade payables ... e 585.1 400.4 613.0
Other payables and accrued liabilities .......ccccccvviieeiiiiiieneenne, 469.3 269.7 700.5
Deferred reVENUE .........coviiiiiiiiiiie e vmeeeee e 151.5 109.9 132.5
Provisions .......ccccccvveeeeiiniiienees o 15 149.4 84.6 75.4
Income taxes payable 9.6 3.0 102.0
Financial labilities ...........coooiiiiiiec e e 18 0.8 0.9 1.9
Liabilities of discontinued operations.......ceeee.cceeeeveeiieeeeeccnnennnnn, 28 88.9 342.9 —
Total current liabilities ..........ooooveeieiiii e 1,986.2 1,343.5 1,916.3
Loans and DOITOWINGS ....cooeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e e 14 2,923.3 718.5 901.7
PrOVISIONS ... e e e e e e e e 15 15.9 13.5 245
Financial liabilities ...........ooiiiiiii e 18 23.5 — —
Pensions and employee benefitS ..........cccoveiiiimniiiic i, 17 95.9 70.3 75.4
Deferred tax liabilities .............ouuvuiimmoe e, 7 634.9 — —
Other liabilities 13 196.6 88.8 119.2
Total liabilities 5,876.3 2,234.6 3,037.1
Shareholders’ Equity
Share Capital ........eeeeeeeiiiiiiii e 20 1,420.0 246.1 2.2
Retained arningsS ........ccooiuiiriiiiiiimmmeec et 495.9 796.9 933.1
Contributed SUMPIUS.........uviiiieiiieeeeeee e 43.1 32.5 60.6
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0SS)...........ccccc...... 91.7 (62.5) (39.5)
Total shareholders’ eqUItY ... 2,050.7 1,013.0 956.4
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ..............uveeeiieiiiiiiiaacns, 7.927.0 3.247.6 3.9935

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

PA p o

Director Director
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014 and 53 wseatndedFebruary 2, 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars)

February 1, 2014

(Fiscal 2013)

February 2, 2013

(restated — see note 2(z2))

(Fiscal 2012)

Operating activities
Net (loss) earnings for the year
Add: Income tax benefit.................
Add: Finance costs (income)
Earnings (loss) before income tax and finance costs..
Net cash income taxes received (paid)............c.ccecueee.
Interest (paid) received in cash
Items not affecting cash flows:

Recognition of proceeds on sale of leasehold istere

Depreciation and amortization...............cccceeevvvneenn.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment.........
Net defined benefit pension and employee benefits
EXPENSE .ottt emmenmms e ne e
Other operating activities .................ccemmeecveeeinnennn
Gain on sale of pharmacy records ...........ccceacuveen
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Share based compensation
Redemption of share based compensation grants......
Changes in operating working capital:...............ccccc.....
Decrease in trade and other receivables................
Decrease (increase) in inventories.. SR
Decrease (increase) in other current assets ...........
Decrease in trade and other payables, accrued
liabilities and provisions............ccceveeeeeeeeeeeeennnn:
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities.............
Net cash inflow from (outflow for) operating activties......
Investing activities
Acquisition of Saks, net of cash acquired...................
Capital expenditures
Software development COStS...........oveeriiieeeeeiieeeeniins
Proceeds from lease termination
Proceeds from sale of @ssets..........cccceveeiiiiieeenniines
Other investing activities............cooovieeeemeeieieeenniiieeens
Net cash (outflow for) inflow from investing activties.......
Financing activities
Long-term loans and borrowings:.............cecceeveerieeeenne
Issuance..........
Repayments........
BOIrroWINg COSES ...ocovvvviereeeeiiiiee e vcmeeeiveee e
Net decrease in other long-term borrowings...........

Short-term loans and borrowings: .. .
Net borrowings (repayments) of asset based credlt
facilities
Borrowing costs

Issuance of common shares..............cceeevemmeeieernenns

Dividends Paid ..........c.eeeeieiiiiiiieeiieeeee e aee
Net cash inflow from (outflow for) financing activities......
Foreign exchange losses on cash
Increase (decrease) in cash
Transfer (from) to continuing operations
(Decrease) increase in Cash ..........coocceeeceeeevieeeesiiinneeenn,
Cash at beginning of year...........ccocviviiiiiiicene e,
Cash at end Of Year........cvvveeiiiiiie e

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
Notes _operations operations Total operations operations Total
(175.7) (82.4) (258.1) 27.8 (62.9) (35.1)
(78.5) (27.9) (106.4) 9.4) (77.9) (87.3)
261.3 — 261.3 97.1 (0.4) 96.7
7.1 (110.3) (103.2) 1155 (141.2) (25.7)
1.3 93.2 94.5 (10.2) (2.7) (12.9)
(81.7) — (81.7) (86.9) 0.7 (86.2)
28 — (33.4) (33.4) — (271.5) (271.5)
5 175.6 — 175.6 104.1 5.0 109.1
11, 28 4.1 — 4.1 11.9 315 43.4
20.8 6.0 26.8 11.8 10.0 21.8
(14.5) (0.2) (14.7) (21.2) 15 (19.6)
28 — — — — (41.0) (41.0)
— 16.4 16.4 9.1) 28.2 19.1
19 10.6 — 10.6 5.2 — 5.2
19 (3.2) (5.2) (8.4) (18.3) (9.5) (27.8)
36.8 7.8 44.6 0.5 42.2 42.7
179.7 151.3 331.0 (24.1) 692.7 668.6
4.1 6.4 10.5 9.8) (3.9) (13.7)
(161.7) (210.7) (372.4) (13.7) (67.3) (81.0)
25.2 (7.0) 18.2 25.0 (1.9 23.1
204.2 (85.7) 118.5 80.8 272.8 353.6
4 (2,765.7) — (2,765.7) — — —
(238.3) — (238.3) (159.3) — (159.3)
(53.2) — (53.2) (43.6) — (43.6)
3.6 — 3.6 — — —
— 2.7 2.7 4.7 81.7 86.4
0.5 — (0.5) 0.9 — 0.9
(3,054.1) 2.7 (3,051.4) (197.3) 81.7 (115.6)
14
2,658.6 — 2,658.6 499.5 — 499.5
(684.1) — (684.1) (704.1) — (704.1)
(85.0) — (85.0) (8.9) — (8.9)
(1.6) — (1.6) — — —
1,887.9 — 1,887.9 (213.5) — (213.5)
36.3 — 36.3 (142.2) — (142.2)
(14.4) — (14.4) (5.4) — (5.4)
21.9 — 219 (147.6) — (147.6)
20 1,039.3 — 1,039.3 230.1 — 230.1
(42.9) — (42.9) (101.1) — (101.1)
2,906.2 — 2,906.2 (232.1) — (232.1)
0.8) — (0.8) — — —
55.5 (83.0) (27.5) (348.6) 354.5 5.9
(83.0) 83.0 — 354.5 (354.5) —
(27.5) — (27.5) 5.9 — 5.9
48.3 — 48.3 42.4 — 42.4
20.8 — 20.8 48.3 — 48.3

7



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Hudson’s Bay Company (“HBC” or the “Company”) isGanadian corporation continued under the Canadan&ss
Corporations Act and domiciled in Canada. On Jdly 2008, HBC was acquired by Hudson’s Bay Tradiogn@any, LP
(“HBTC”), a limited partnership now domiciled inglCayman Islands. NRDC L&T B LLC (“L&T B”), a Delaawe limited
liability company, is the managing partner of HBTBBTC had previously acquired Lord & Taylor HoldgLLC (“L&T")
on October 2, 2006.

On November 26, 2012, the Company completed aialipitiblic offering (the “IPO”) of its common share

On November 4, 2013, the Company acquired Sakgpocated (“Saks”) whereby all of the issued andstautding shares
(other than shares owned by Saks and its subsdjaaf Saks were purchased through Lord & Taylogudgition Inc.
(“L&T Acquisition”), a wholly-owned subsidiary ofhe Company, via Harry Acquisition Inc., an indiredbolly-owned
subsidiary of L&T Acquisition ("Merger Sub") for 8.$16.00 per share in an all-cash transaction“f&bgquisition”) valued
at U.S.$2,973.2 million ($3,096.6 million), includj debt assumed (see note 4).

The Company owns and operates department stok@ariada and the United States under Hudson'’s BayeHoutfitters,
Lord & Taylor, Saks and Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TEIRF 5TH”) banners. The Company has substantigepleted the

discontinuation of its discount store business.e ddress of the registered office of HBC is 40y B#reet, Suite 500,
Toronto, ON, M5H 2Y4.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Compand its subsidiaries have been prepared in aanoed with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFIR&S issued by the International Accounting Stadel&oard (“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements for the ysrated February 1, 2014 were authorized for issuagcthe Board of
Directors of HBC on April 2, 2014.

b) Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have begraped on a going concern basis, under the histarost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets &ndncial liabilities (including derivative instnuents) at fair value through
the statements of loss. In accordance with IFRSChmpany has:

» provided comparative financial information; and

» applied the same accounting policies throughoytetliods presented.
The preparation of financial statements in accordawith IFRS requires the use of critical accouptéstimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgment in applfie Company’s accounting policies. These areashiimg a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas whesemaptions and estimates are significant are diedl@s note 3.

C) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements of the @mppnclude the accounts of HBC and its subsidsarieter-company
transactions, balances, revenues and expensebéaneliminated.



d) Fiscal year
The fiscal year of the Company consists of a 523week period. Fiscal year 2013 represents 52 sveed fiscal year 2012
represents 53 weeks ended on February 1, 2014 ebmdidry 2, 2013, respectively. References to yigatise consolidated
financial statements and notes to the consolidiiadcial statements relate to fiscal years rathan calendar years.
e) Foreign currency translation
i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of eafcthe Company’s entities are measured using theecay of the
primary economic environment in which the entityemyies (the “functional currency”). These consadéda
financial statements are presented in Canadiarmrdplivhich is HBC’s functional currency and the sgreation
currency of the Company.
i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated imoftinctional currency using the exchange ratéseatiates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losse#tingsfrom the settlement of such transactions &odh the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities deinated in foreign currencies at balance sheet eéathange rates
are recognized in the consolidated statement of lmscept when included in other comprehensivenrecgoss) as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

iii) Foreign operations

The results and financial position of L&T Acquisiti and its subsidiaries including L&T and Saks, chhave a
U.S. dollar functional currency, are translatea itite presentation currency as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the ofpsikchange rate at the date of each balance sheet;
* revenues and expenses are translated at averdugngecrates;
e equity transactions are translated at exchange cait¢he date the transactions occur; and

« all resulting foreign exchange translation diffares are recognized as currency translation adjustme
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss

f) Business combinations and goodwiill
Business combinations are accounted for usingdfeisition method.

Goodwill is measured as the difference betweenfairevalue of the consideration transferred and fdie value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assilinal measured as at the acquisition date. Gobdwilot amortized.

Consideration transferred includes the fair valtithe assets acquired (including cash), liabilisssumed, the fair value of
any contingent consideration and equity interesstged by the Company.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with drmss combination are expensed in the period asrizat.
o)) Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand, deposits in bantksshort-term deposits with maturities of less tllaree months and

includes restricted funds. Restricted cash reptesamounts deposited in escrow accounts which amtained and
managed by an independent agent.



h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consisting of credd esuer, vendor and other receivables are rezednnitially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost ubmgeffective interest method, less allowance fopairment. An

allowance for impairment of accounts receivablestblished when there is objective evidence tirmCompany will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to theial terms of the receivables.

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost andreatizable value. Cost is determined using theghted average cost
method based on individual items and, with respe&aks, a retail inventory method that approximaiest. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price determinethatitem level using gross profit expectation argidnical markdown rates
for similar items in the ordinary course of busmdsss estimated costs required to sell.

Costs comprise all variable costs, and certaindfigests, incurred in bringing inventories to thpiesent location and
condition. Storage and administrative overheadseapensed as incurred. Supplier rebates and discawe recorded as a
reduction in the cost of purchases unless theyerédea reimbursement of specific incremental egpen

Merchandise that is subject to consignment or een(concession) agreements is not included astones.
)] Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cast hccumulated depreciation and any accumulatpdiriment losses.
Freehold land is stated at cost less any impairftast Cost includes expenditures that can be tiirattributed to the
acquisition of the asset and capitalized borrowgogts. Subsequent costs are included in the assetging amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate wbeln it is probable that future economic benefiif flow to the
Company and the cost can be reliably measuredcaitiging amount of the replaced asset is derecedniz

Freehold land and assets under construction ardepreciated. Depreciation commences when thesagsetavailable for
use and is recognized on a straight-line basiefratiate the cost of the assets to their estimatgdual value over their
estimated useful lives. When significant parts nfasset have different useful lives, they are actalifor as separate
components of the asset and depreciated overrdsgective estimated useful lives. Estimated udeies are as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods

12 TUT]Fo [TV 1= TSP up to 70 years
Leasehold iMPrOVEMENTS ........oiiiii i ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e eeneeees up to 20 years
FIXTUIES @and fIttINGS ... e ee e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e aeaeeaeeseeaaannnnnnne up to 19 years
Assets held under fiNANCE [ASES........uvviiiiee i up to 50 years

Although the table reflects maximum amortizationigeas, most assets are amortized over shortergerithe assets’ useful
lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjustppropriate, annually.

k) Intangible assets

Private label brands and banner names with indeflivies are measured at cost less any accumdulaferment losses and
are not amortized.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are matrat cost less accumulated amortization and imgit losses. These assets
are amortized on a straight-line basis over thatingated useful lives, as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods
Software including internally deVelOPed COSES. mmmmm.rrrririiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e e e up to 7 years
BANNET NMAMIES. ...ttt me bttt et ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e s e e s e aanbeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaaaaaaeaaeaaaannnnrae indefinite
Private [abel Drands..........oooi e e e indefinite
L0 = To 1 o= T o RSSO up to 5 years
Favourable [aSE FQNTS ........ e et e e e e e e e e up to 75 years



The assets’ useful lives and residual values atiewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Costs associated with maintaining computer softysaograms are recognized as an expense as inciregdlopment costs
that are directly attributable to the design ansting of identifiable and unique software productmtrolled by the
Company, including employee costs, are recognisddtangible assets.

)] Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of property, plant, and equipnaad intangible assets are reviewed for impaitmérenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt may not be recoverable. Indefinite lifeangible assets and
goodwill are tested for impairment annually, or m@requently, if events or changes in circumstancdicate that the asset
may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amountwhych the asset’'s carrying value exceeds its raedle amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’svflire less costs to sell (“FVLCTS”) and value seuThe FVLCTS of an
asset is assessed, where practicable, by extemhators. Value in use is estimated as the presdne of the future cash
flows that the Company expects to derive from tbset For the purposes of assessing impairmemtsaa®e grouped at the
lowest level for which there are largely indeperidesssh inflows (cash-generating units). With theeption of certain

corporate assets, which are tested at the entig}, lall assets are tested for impairment at theedevel asset grouping.

Any impairment loss identified for a particular bagenerating unit is allocated to the assets withat unit on a pro rata
basis, except where the recoverable amount of set asbased on FVLCTS, in which case no portiothefimpairment loss
is allocated to that asset. Any impairment chasgecognized in net earnings (loss) in the yeavliich it occurs. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses due to agehan the original estimate, the impairment losgegersed but is
restricted to increasing the carrying value ofréflevant assets to the carrying value that woule: Heeen recognized had the
original impairment not occurred.

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company hassept legal or constructive obligation as a resfuttast events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be regdito settle the obligation, and the amount carebably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value ofgesment’'s best estimate of the expenditure requiresgtttle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisioesestimates and the actual costs and timing ofrdubash flows are
dependent on future events. Any difference betwesgrectations and the actual future liability wi# Bccounted for in the
period when such determination is made. Recovdras third parties and other contingent gains @&eognized when
realized.

i) Salf-insurance

The Company purchases third party insurance farmaabile, product, workers’ compensation and genéehility
claims that exceed a certain dollar level. The Camyps responsible for the payment of claims belogse insured
limits. Provisions for self-insurance are deterrdirsetuarially on a discounted basis based on cléilets and an
estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported.

i) Restructuring

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognizéémthe Company has a detailed formal plan forgks&ucturing
and has raised a valid expectation in those affetttat it will carry out the restructuring by stag to implement
that plan or announcing its main features to ttadfected by it.

iii) Onerous leases and contracts

Provisions for onerous leases are recognized wherCompany believes that the unavoidable costs esdting
future lease obligations exceed the economic binefipected to be received under the lease. Poosisior
onerous contracts are recognized when the expdutedfits to be derived from a contract are less tte
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations urtat contract, and only after any impairment lossesassets
dedicated to that contract have been recognized.pfvision is measured at the present value ofatlver of the
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expected cost of terminating the contract and fpeeted net cost of continuing with the contract.
iv) Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recognized forrajieg leases where the Company has a legal ortrcetise
obligation to remove leasehold improvements andaoepor remove other structures at the end ofehed term,
and for owned locations and at locations subjeartund leases with similar requirements. Obligaiare also
booked for owned properties for constructive oralegbligations (such as environmental remediatior)e
obligation is measured at the present value of @rplecosts to settle the obligation using estimateh flows and
capitalized and amortized over the useful lifehaf asset to which it relates.

V) Legal

Legal provisions are recognized where there isemgnt obligation as a result of a past event, jiradbable that
there will be an outflow of economic resources, Hrelamount can be reliably estimated.

n) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risksl rewards of ownership are transferred to the famy are classified as
finance leases. All other leases are classifienpasating leases.

Finance leases are capitalized at the inceptidheofease at the lower of the fair value of theséebproperty and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The propeiant and equipment acquired under finance leasedepreciated over
the shorter of the economic life of the asset erlélase term.

Payments made under operating leases (net of amytimes received from the lessor) are chargedcéocbnsolidated

statements of loss on a straight-line basis owetdhm of the lease. Income from operating leasesdognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. The lease itecludes renewals where management is reasowetigin the renewal

option will be exercised.

The accounting treatment of a sale and leasebankdction depends upon the substance of the ttamrsaad whether the
sale price reflects fair value.

For sale and finance leasebacks, any gain or toss the sale is deferred and amortized over tha tdrthe lease. For sale
and operating leasebacks, if it is clear the tretima is established at fair value, any gain osl@srecognized immediately.
If the sale price is below fair value, any gainlass is recognized immediately except that if th&slis compensated for by
future lease payments at below market price, the i® deferred and amortized in proportion to dasé payments over the
term of the lease. If the sale price is aboveValue, the excess over fair value is deferredandrtized over the term of
the lease.

0) Income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognized on taxable teamyadifferences arising from differences betweenttix bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in tlensolidated financial statements. Deferred incoaxeig recognized for all
taxable temporary differences, except to the extérdre it arises from the initial recognition of asset or a liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination atnithe time of transaction, affects neither accognprofit nor taxable
profit. Deferred income tax is determined using tates and laws that have been enacted or subsignénacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply Weerlated deferred income tax asset is realiz¢keodeferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets have been recognizegspect of non-capital losses and temporary diffegs giving rise to
deferred income tax assets because it is expeudhiese assets will be recovered by way of ravefstaxable temporary
differences and management’s expectation of futxable profits within the loss expiry period.

Income tax expense or benefit comprises currentaferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in thesclidated statements
of loss, except to the extent that it relates émi recognized either in other comprehensive inc@o®s) or directly in
equity. The income tax expense or benefit is cated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or suibstly enacted at the
date of the balance sheet.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only netté@&n the Company has a legally enforceable rightftset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the rdefetax assets and liabilities relate to incomegalevied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable pmtitdifferent taxable entities which intend to liza or settle current tax
assets or liabilities simultaneously in future pds.

p) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages, salaries (including non-mtarg benefits), vacation entitlement and bonusesnagasured on
an undiscounted basis and are recognized in selliegeral and administrative expenses as the detsevice is
provided. A liability is recognized for the amowaxpected to be paid under short-term bonus plathe iCompany
has a present legal or constructive obligatiorhi® amount as a result of past service providetheyemployee and
the obligation can be reliably estimated.

i) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions (botimddfcontribution and defined benefit) and non-pemgost-
retirement benefits (medical and life insurancedfiés for retirees). The Company reports its olilyes under
these plans net of any plan assets.

The asset or liability recognized in the consokdabalance sheet in respect of defined benefitipendans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligatiotha&t end of the reporting period less the fair valtiplan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated antydly independent actuaries using the projected oredit

method. The present value of the defined benefigation is determined by discounting the estimdtgdre cash
outflows using interest rates of high quality cagge bonds that are denominated in the currenoyhich the

benefits will be paid, and that have terms to mit@pproximating the terms of the related pendiaiility.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in atbemprehensive income (loss) in the period in whiwdy arise.
Past service costs are recognized in selling, géaad administrative expenses in the year in wttiely arise. For
funded plans, surpluses are recognized only textent that the surplus is considered recoverftgeoverability is
primarily based on the extent to which the Compeany unilaterally reduce future contributions to fihen.

For defined contribution plans, the Company paystrifmutions to pension plans on a mandatory, cotied or
voluntary basis. The Company has no further paynabiigations once the contributions have been paid.
Contributions are recognized as employee benefiteses are incurred, which are as the related gagleervices
are rendered.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits

The Company provides long-term disability benefiiscertain employees dependent on the legal empldye
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditiaarathe completion of a minimum service period eTéxpected
costs of these benefits are recognized when art egenrs that causes the long-term disability. Aol gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments andgesaim actuarial assumptions are recognized ineaatings
(loss) in the period in which they arise. Thesagattions are calculated annually.

iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expendeadiability at the earlier of when the entityncao longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit antlem the entity recognizes any related restructurosys.

V) Share based payments

The Company operates share based incentive plahsr wvhich it receives services from certain empésyas
consideration. For equity settled awards, thevalue of the grant of equity interests is recogdias an expense
over the period that the related service is rertleiieh a corresponding increase in equity. Fohesettled awards,
the fair value of the liability is remeasured ae tend of each reporting period, with the changdain value
recognized as an expense over the period thaethted service is rendered. Certain awards pravidéCompany
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a)

with a choice of settlement in cash or by issuiggiy. In these cases, the award is accountedda cash-settled
award when the Company has a present obligatisettte in cash.

The total amount to be expensed is determinedfieyenece to the fair value of the equity interesented. The total
amount expensed is recognized over the vestingg®m a tranche basis, which is the period ovechvhll of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfietleAch balance sheet date, the estimate of the euaibequity
interests that are expected to vest is revised.impact of the revision to original estimates,rifyais recognized in
selling, general and administrative expenses.

Financial assets

Financial assets have been classified in one offdlewing categories: at fair value through prodit loss, loans and
receivables, and held-to-maturity. The classifmatdepends on the purpose for which the finan@aks were acquired.
Management determines the classification of itarfimal assets at initial recognition.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit aslare financial assets held for trading. A finahasset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for therpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives als categorized
as held for trading unless they are designateadgds. Assets in this category are classified asmuassets.

Financial assets carried at fair value throughiposfloss are initially recognized at fair valuedatransaction costs
are expensed immediately to the consolidated statesrof loss. Subsequent changes in the fair vadimancial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are e¢gorded in the consolidated statements of loss.

i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahatejuoted in
an active market. They are included in currenttassxcept for those with maturities greater thamibonths after
the balance sheet date, which are classified asaoent assets. Loans and receivables are meastsedortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are financial instrumgewith fixed or determinable payments and fixedtumties
that the Company has the intention and ability atd to maturity. They are included in current asseicept for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balaheet date, which are classified as non-curresgtasHeld-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortizedusisy the effective interest rate method.

The Company’s non-derivative financial assets fassified and measured as follows:

Asset Category

(OF= 1= o T Loans and receivables
R LTS 1 (01 (=10 I o= 1] o I Loans and receivables
ShOr-termM AEPOSIES ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e s amnnees Held-to-maturity
Trade and Other rECEIVADIES ............ii e e e Loans and receivables
iv) I mpairment

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, evhiidre is an indicator that a financial assegmup of
financial assets is impaired. A financial assegmup of financial assets is deemed to be impafrezhd only if,
there is evidence of impairment as a result of aneore events that has occurred after the inmiéiabgnition of an
asset and that event has an impact on the estimaig@ cash flows of the financial asset or gradidinancial
assets that can be reliably estimated.
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V) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized costQbmpany first assesses whether objective evidehaapairment
exists individually for financial assets that andividually significant, or collectively for finamal assets that are not
individually significant. If the Company determindlat no objective evidence of impairment exists ém
individually assessed financial asset, whetherifsggmt or not, it includes the asset in a grougfinéncial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and cotleely assesses them for impairment. Assets thatiratividually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairnest is, or continues to be, recognized are nduded in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairmergs| has been incurred, the amount of loss is me#sas the
difference between the asset’s carrying amountthedpresent value of estimated future cash flowsl@eing
future expected credit losses that have not yat rerirred). The present value of the estimatedréutash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effecinterest rate.

r Financial liabilities

Trade payables and financial liabilities includadther payables and accrued liabilities are reizegninitially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequerghsured at amortized cost using the effectiveaatenethod.

Loans and borrowings are recognized initially &t falue, net of transaction costs incurred. Loand borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difterdsetween the proceeds (net of transaction cast$)the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statemeht®ss as finance costs over the period of thedwdngs using the
effective interest method, unless related to aifyirad asset (note 2(t)).

Loans and borrowings are classified as currentiiligls unless the Company has an unconditionditrig defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the ala sheet date.

s) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valo@ the date a derivative contract is entered imd are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balancet stade. The method of recognizing the resultinghgai loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedgisigument and, if so, the nature of the item béiadged. The Company
designates certain derivatives as:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognized assetsbililies or a firm commitment (fair value
hedge);

(b) hedges of foreign currency exposure (net investrnedge);

(c) hedges of a particular risk associated with a reizegl asset or liability or a highly probable

forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

When a derivative financial instrument is not daesigd in a qualifying hedge relationship all changreits fair value are
recognized immediately in net earnings (loss).

The Company documents at the inception of the &etien the relationship between hedging instrumantshedged items,
as well as its risk management objectives andegjyafor undertaking various hedging transactiortse Tompany also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inceptidrom an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatihes are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in otisgtchanges in fair values or cash flows of hedggmis.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is dided as a non-current asset or liability when rieturity of the remaining
hedged item is more than 12 months and as a cusset or liability when the remaining maturitytioé hedged item is less
than 12 months.
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The Company does not use derivatives for tradingpeculative purposes. The Company had cash flagdseoutstanding
for the years ended February 1, 2014 and FebruaB023 and a net investment hedge outstandinghtryear ended
February 1, 2014.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair vahfederivatives that are designated and qualify ashcflow hedges is
recognized in other comprehensive income (losse §hin or loss relating to the ineffective portien recognized
immediately in the consolidated statements of Wiglsin selling, general and administrative expengesounts accumulated
in other comprehensive income (loss) are recycigtié consolidated statements of loss in the penduen the hedged item
affects earnings (loss).

When a forecasted transaction that is hedged sesulthe recognition of a non-financial asset @sample, inventory or
property, plant and equipment), the gains and fopseviously deferred in accumulated other comprsive income (loss)
are transferred from equity and included in thdiahimeasurement of the cost of the asset. Thermefeamounts are
ultimately recognized in cost of sales in the aalS@ventory or in depreciation in the case of pp, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, oerwh hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedgeuating, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at thiate remains in accumulated other comprehensivenec (loss) and is
recognized when the forecast transaction is ulgigatecognized in the consolidated statements sf.18Vhen a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, theutative gain or loss that was reported in other pahensive income (loss)
is immediately transferred to net earnings (loss).

Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of derivatives embeddea host contract and derivatives that are noingdjsished in a hedging
relationship are recognized immediately in net e@® (loss). Embedded derivatives (elements of rects whose cash
flows move independently from the host contrace mquired to be separated and measured at tlspieative fair values
unless certain criteria are met. The Company hesrded the fair value of embedded derivatives inCHBU.S. dollar
denominated purchase orders with certain non-UaSedh vendors. The fair value of these embeddedadiegs is recorded
in financial assets or financial liabilities, depérg on the embedded derivative’s fair value.

Due to the variability of the share issue price aedtain features of the equity investment agredsneslated to the
Acquisition, forward contracts (“Equity CommitmeRbrwards”) were recognized and accounted for aiwatére financial
instruments which are classified as fair value tigfoprofit or loss and measured at fair value.

In connection with the Acquisition, the Companyoaissued warrants. Certain features of the wasragsult in their
presentation as derivative financial liabilitiesiethare classified as fair value through profilass and recorded in financial
liabilities at fair value.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are effiand the net amount reported in the balance gheet

» There is currently a legally enforceable right tfset recognized amounts; and

e There is an intention to settle on a net basity oealize the assets and settle the liabilitiesutaneously.
t) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable lte eicquisition or construction of qualifying assats capitalized to the cost
of the asset. Qualifying assets are those thatssaddy take a substantial period of time to pregdar their intended use. All
other borrowing costs are recognized in the codatdid statements of loss in the period in whicly tezur.

u) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideragceived or receivable for the sale of goodssamdices in the ordinary
course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shoet of sales tax and estimated returns.
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The Company recognizes revenue when the amounbeagliably measured, it is probable that futureneenic benefits
will flow to the Company and when specific critehiave been met for each of the Company’s activagesdescribed below.
The Company bases its estimates on historicalteggaking into consideration the type of custontieg, type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

i) Retail merchandise sales

Revenue consists of sales through retail storekeobanners operated by the Company and includes ttaough

the Company’s e-commerce (“Digital Commerce”) ofierss. Merchandise sales through retail stores are
recognized at the time of delivery to the custombich is generally at point of sale. Merchandiages through
Digital Commerce are recognized upon estimatedpebg the customer.

It is the Company’s policy to sell merchandise tte tustomer with a right to return within a spexdfiperiod.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate andgedor such returns. Where it is determined thenGany acts
as an agent rather than a principal in a trangaat@venue is recognized to the extent of the cawimm.

i) Gift cards

The Company sells gift cards through its retailestp websites and selected third parties with noiaidtrative fee
charges or expiration dates. No revenue is recedni the time gift cards are sold. Revenue isgreized as a
merchandise sale when the gift card is redeemetebgustomer.

The Company also recognizes income when the li@etihof the gift card being redeemed by the custoiner
remote (“gift card breakage”). Gift card breakageestimated based on historical redemption pattants is
recognized in proportion to the redemption of gétd balances.

V) Credit operations

The Company earns royalty payments from credit éssders based on the total of Company and othes sharged to
either Private Label Credit Cards (“PLCC") or Ma&tards. Royalty rates change based on the yeaat®eadedit volume of
out-of-store credit card sales. The Company alseives bounty payments from credit card issuergémh approved PLCC
or MasterCard account. Bounty and royalty paymargsecognized based on expected or actual penfamaraver the life of

the credit card agreements. In addition, pursuarg servicing agreement with a credit card isstier,Company receives
compensation for providing key customer servicecfioms including new account openings, transactathorizations,

billing adjustments and customer inquiries. Aledit revenues are included as a reduction of sglljeneral and
administrative expenses.

w) Vendor allowances

The Company receives cash or allowances from vendbe most significant of which are in respectnoérkdown
allowances, volume rebates and advertising. Suduata are recorded as a reduction of the costrehpses.

Rebates that are based on specified cumulativehpsecvolumes are recognized if the rebate is ptelatd reasonably
estimable; otherwise these rebates are recognitexh warned. These rebates are applied as a redwdtithe cost of
purchases.

X) Loyalty programs

Award credits are accounted for as a separate coemp@f the sales transaction in which they aratgchand therefore, part
of the fair value of the consideration receivedliscated to the award credits. This allocatiorejsorted as deferred revenue
until the award credits are redeemed by the custoffee amount deferred is based on points outstgnitiat the Company

estimates will be redeemed by customers and timaasd fair value of those points. The points expeédo be redeemed are
based on many factors, including an actuarial veviehere required, of customers’ past experiencktaends.

y) Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and groups of assets and fiebilvhich comprise disposal groups are presergegssets held for sale,
where the asset or disposal group is availabledt® in its present condition and the sale is kighbbable. For this purpose,
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the sale is considered highly probable if managénsecommitted to a plan to achieve the sale; tigesn active program to
find a buyer; the non-current asset or disposalgie being actively marketed at a reasonable pitigesale is anticipated to
be completed within one year from the date of diassion, and; it is unlikely there will be chang®o the plan.

When a component of an entity has been disposedisfclassified as held for sale, and it represargeparate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, fageteresults of operations and gain or loss opadigion are presented in
discontinued operations.

2) New accounting standards implemented in the currenyear
Employee Benefits

In June 2011, the IASB amended IAS 19 — Employeeeits. The amendments provide clarification onrgeognition of
termination benefits; eliminate the existing opttordefer actuarial gains and losses (known asdhgdor approach) related
to defined benefit plans; require changes from esuement of defined benefit plan assets andiligkito be presented in
the statement of other comprehensive income; aguine additional disclosures. Net interest on thebrenefit plan assets
and liabilities, as calculated under the amendef I®, is now included in finance costs in the statets of loss in
accordance with IAS 1 — Presentation of Financi@teéBnents. The Company adopted the amended IAStat@lad
retrospectively in the first quarter of fiscal 201Bhe impact of the amendments to IAS 19 is surimedras follows:

Consolidated Statements of Loss

(millions of Canadian dollars, except per share ammts) 2012
Increase in selling, general and adminiStratiVERBBBS ........cvvvivierieeeeeee i e et ereeemr e e e e e e e e e eearrerrreeeaaaaaaaeeesanas (5.3)
DECrease N fINANCE COSIS .. .uuuiiiiiiiiticeeeeee ettt e ettt e e st e e s s bbbt e e e e s s bbbt e e e e e e nbbeeeeesenanaeesnnsnees 0.2
Increase in income tax benefit 1.4
Increase in Net 10SS — CONtINUING OPEIALIONS wuw e e eeeeeeeeetrttiteteeeereereaseeeeeesssassssennrssrresrrerreeraeaeeeeeeareeeereeeaees (3.7)
Decrease in net 10ss — diSCONtINUING OPEIAtIONS.........ccccuurriiiiiiiiieiie e reeee e e e e e esess e e e rrreeeeeaeeeesseannmeeeees 13.4
DECIEASE 1N NETIOSS ...ttt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e et bttt ettt et e e eaaaaaaaaeeessannmnesseeeeeeeaans 9.7
Net loss per common share — basic and diluted
(0] 111 o181 aTo Io] 01T = UiloT o 1= J TP EURTRRPTR (0.03)
DiSCONTINUING OPEIALIONS ....c.etteeeee et ceeee ettt e e sttt e e st e e e s bbbt e e e e e s bt e et e e s e bbb e et e e e e anb b et e e e e anbbreeeeennnees 0.12

0.09
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2012
DECIEASE 1N NETIOSS ...ttt ettt ettt et et e e e e e e e e e e e b ae b et bttt ettt e e eeaaaaaeeeeeesmmmm s e nnnnnennens 9.7
Decrease in net defined benefit plan actuarial iEEOf taxes Of $L.7...ccooviiiiiiiiiiiii e v 4.8
Decrease in other COMPIrENENSIVE [0SS .....cceeeeeeeeiiiiieiie e e e e e e r e e e e e aaaeaeaes 4.8
Decrease in total COMPIrENENSIVE 10SS ...t e e e e e e e e e e e e as 14.5
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Jan 29,
(millions of Canadian dollars) Feb2,2013 2012
Decrease in assets of discontinued operationsfielhle. ..., (5.0) —
DECIEASE IN PrOVISIONS .. .uuuvrvtierreesee s s bettaeaeeeeeeeeaaaaeaaaeessssssaasssssssssneseeaeaeaaeeaeesessnsannnnnssnssnnes (1.9) (0.7)
Increase in INCOME taXeS PAYADIE...... ... ettt 0.5 0.2
Decrease in liabilities of discontinued operatiBfd for SAle ...........ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (18.6) —
Increase (decrease) in retaiNed EAIMINGS . occaetiiiiriiieiiii e r e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ananes 4.7 (5.0)
Decrease in accumulated other cOmMPreheNnNSIVe J0SS cc....vvvveiiiiiiiiiiiea e 10.3 55

Consolidated Financial Statements

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10 — Consoliddathncial Statements (“IFRS 10”) which replacegipas of IAS 27
— Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemems (27”) and all of SIC-12 — Consolidation — SpdcRurpose
Entities. IFRS 10 establishes principles for thespntation and preparation of consolidated finarst&ements when an
entity controls one or more entities. The standarlires an entity to consolidate an investee whenexposed to, or has
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rights to, variable returns from its involvementwihe investee and has the ability to affect theserns through its power
over the investee. As a consequence, IAS 27 has dewnded but retains the existing guidance foarség financial

statements. IFRS 10 was issued as part of the I&8Bjader project on interests in all types oftesti On June 28, 2012,
the 1ASB issued amendments to IFRS 10 which pravidansition relief, limiting the requirement toopide adjusted

comparative information to only the preceding corafige period. IFRS 10 is effective for annual pds beginning on or
after January 1, 2013 and must be applied retréispbc The Company has applied the standard ab#uinning of its 2013
fiscal year and implementation did not have an ichjpa its results of operations, financial positaord disclosures.

Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 12 — Disclosufénterests in Other Entities (“IFRS 12") which alslishes disclosure
requirements for an entity’s interests in otheitms, such as subsidiaries, joint arrangementgaates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The standard carries forwaxidtiag disclosure requirements and introduces ifiaggmt additional
disclosure requirements that address the natusndfrisks associated with, an entity’s interaststher entities. On June 28,
2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 12 whiokiighes transition relief, limiting the requirementprovide adjusted
comparative information to only the preceding corafige period. IFRS 12 is effective for annual pds beginning on or
after January 1, 2013 and must be applied retréispbc The Company has applied the standard abéginning of its 2013
fiscal year and implementation resulted in addalatisclosures in note 27 of these consolidateahfital statements.

Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 13 — Fair Valueddurement (“IFRS 13"), which is a comprehensiaedsrd for fair
value measurement and disclosure requirementssm@aaross all IFRS standards. The new standaiifiedahat fair value
is the price that would be received to sell antaggepaid to transfer a liability in an orderhatrsaction between market
participants, at the measurement date. It alsdksttes disclosure about fair value measurementetexisting IFRS,
guidance on measuring and disclosing fair valudispersed among the specific standards requiringyddue measurements
and in many cases does not reflect a clear measutebasis or consistent disclosures. The Compameimented this
standard prospectively in the first quarter of disR013 and there were no measurement impacts @nCdmpany’s
consolidated financial statements. ImplementatibhF®S 13 has resulted in additional disclosuresdtes 17 and 18 to
these consolidated financial statements.

Other Comprehensive Income Presentation

In June 2011, the IASB amended IAS 1 — Presentatidfinancial Statements to require companies ¢ogtogether items
within other comprehensive income that may be ssifi@d to the profit or loss section of the incostatement. The
amendments reaffirm the existing requirements iteahs in other comprehensive income and profit ass|should be
presented as either a single statement or two catige statements. The amendments are effectivearfioual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2012. As a resulttted adoption of the IAS 1 amendment the Companyrhedified its
presentation of other comprehensive income (Igsf)@ése consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments — Asset and Liability Offsetting

The IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 7 and IAF-iB2ncial Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32"high clarify the
requirements for offsetting financial instrumentsl aequire new disclosures on the effect of offisgtarrangements on the
Company’s financial position. The amendments toSFRare effective for annual periods beginning pafter January 1,
2013 and must be applied retrospectively. The aments to IAS 32 are effective for annual periodgifyeing on or after
January 1, 2014 and must be applied retrospectifély Company implemented IFRS 7 at the beginninigs 2013 fiscal
year and the implementation did not have an impagts results of operations, financial positiowl @isclosures.

aa) Future accounting standards not yet adopted
Financial Instruments

In November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9 — Findnicistruments: Classification and Measurement (‘B-&’), which

contained requirements for financial assets. ThHeRAadded requirements for financial liabilities@etober 2010. IFRS 9
will replace IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recitign and Measurement (“IAS 39”) in its entiretyRS 9 uses a single
approach to determine whether a financial asskaloitity is measured at amortized cost or fairualreplacing the multiple
rules in IAS 39. For financial assets, the appraaclrRS 9 is based on how an entity managesnnfiial instruments in
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the context of its business model and the contehatash flow characteristics of the financial ass&he new standard also
requires a single impairment method to be usedacam the multiple impairment methods in IAS 3bhe effective date for
implementation of this standard has been deferrédrly adoption is permitted. The Company is assgsthe potential
impact of this standard.

In December 2011, the IASB amended IAS 32 — Firdrostruments: Presentation (*IAS 327) to clarthe requirements
which permit offsetting a financial asset and liggiin the financial statements. The IAS 32 ameedis will be applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning orafber January 1, 2014. The Company is assessigdtential impact of
the IAS 32 amendments.

In June 2013, IASB amended IAS 39, providing gua@amn novation of over-the-counter derivatives @&odtinued
designation for hedge accounting. The amendmenitd3a39 must be applied retrospectively for anmediods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014. The Company is aisges®e potential impact of the IAS 39 amendments.

Impairment of Assets

In May 2013, the IASB amended IAS 36 — ImpairmehfAssets (“IAS 36), providing guidance on recovaie amount
disclosures for non-financial assets. The amendsrtentAS 36 must be applied retrospectively foruaimperiods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014. The Company is asges®e potential impact of the IAS 36 amendments.

Levies

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21 — Levies,\pding guidance on the accounting for levies immblg governments.
The interpretation clarifies that the obligatingeat/that gives rise to a liability to pay a levythe activity described in the
relevant legislation that triggers the paymenttaf kevy. IFRIC 21 is effective for periods begirgion or after January 1,
2014 and must be applied retrospectively. The Comjmassessing the potential impact of IFRIC 21.

NOTE 3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ES TIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting giek, which are described in note 2, and the padjoar of the
consolidated financial statements, managemenyigined to make judgments, estimates and assumpdlomst the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities, and reportintnodme and expenses, that are not readily appamntother sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are basastarchl experience and other factors that aresiciemed to be relevant.
Actual results may differ materially from theseimsites. The estimates and underlying assumptiongeaiiewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimateseognized in the period in which the estimateissed if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of theiseon and future periods if the revision affectsttb current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estiow@s that management has made in the process pifiag the
Company’s accounting policies and that have thetrmmmificant effect on the amounts recognizedha tonsolidated
financial statements:

Business combinations

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities agsiim a business combination is estimated baseédf@mation available at
the date of acquisition and involves considerabliginent in determining the fair values assignegrtperty, plant and
equipment and intangible assets acquired and itiabilassumed on acquisition. The determinatiorithefe fair values
involves analysis including the use of discountadhcflow analysis, estimated future margins, fugn@wth rates, market
rents and capitalization rates. There is measureomertainty inherent in this analysis and actaallts could differ from
estimates.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and netlizable value. Current selling price and histdricands for estimating
future markdowns are utilized to estimate net eadlie value. Inventory valuation also incorporatesrite-down to reflect
future losses on the disposition of obsolete merdisa.

Inventory is adjusted to reflect estimated lossebaftage”) incurred since the last inventory couBtiortage is estimated
based on historical experience as a percentagaeled for the period from the date of the last inegncount to the end of
the fiscal year.
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Loyalty programs

Where loyalty award credits are issued in connaatiih a sales transaction which includes the kyyatogram, a portion of
the revenue has been deferred based on expecteshpidns of points outstanding (note 2(x)). The antoof revenue
deferred relating to the loyalty programs is sévesito changes in customer behaviour and the imphchanges in the
loyalty programs. Deferred revenue reported incitresolidated balance sheets relates entirely totladty programs.

Impairment and reversal of impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are subject to impairment andaimpent reversal reviews based on whether currefitare events and
circumstances suggest that their recoverable anmagtbe more or less than their carrying valuecdrtain instances, the
recoverable amount is based on a calculation oéeegd future cash flows which includes managemssturaptions and
estimates of future performance. Details of agaphirments are set out in note 11.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Company uses judgment in determining the graumf assets to identify its cash generating u@i@GUs") for
purposes of testing for impairment of goodwill. testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a leds combination is
allocated to the CGUs that are expected to befrefit the synergies of the business combinationt th® Acquisition, the
Company has not yet completed its analysis foatleeation of goodwill to CGUs or groups of CGUsawhill benefit from
the synergies and as such; goodwill cannot behigl@llocated at this time. Judgment is also usedetermine whether an
indication of impairment is present which would uagg the completion of an impairment test. Detailghe allocation of
goodwill are set out in note 4.

Valuation of Warrants and Equity Commitment Forward s

In connection with the Acquisition, the Companyuisg warrants. Additionally, due to the variabilitiithe share issue price
and certain features of the equity investment agesgs related to the Acquisition, forward contrgtEquity Commitment
Forwards”) were recognized and accounted for awatere financial instruments which are classifigsl fair value through
profit or loss and measured at fair value. Thessifcation of these instruments as financial litibs is an area of
significant judgment. The Company recorded the katamarket valuation adjustment of the warrantsl dquity
Commitment Forwards as finance costs based upovetbation at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for various items inolydasset retirement obligations, general insurdiaglity and
termination costs. Asset retirement obligations based on uncertain estimates of remediation aadtithing of the
remediation. The Company purchases third partyramste for automobile, product, worker’'s compensatimd general
liability claims that exceed a certain dollar levEhe Company is responsible for the payment dfrdébelow these insured
limits. The self-insurance provision is based a@imk filed and an estimate of claims incurred toityet reported. Details of
the Company’s provisions are set out in note 15.

Sales returns

Sales returns are estimated on the basis of iataeturns and these are recorded so as to altivam to the same period
as the original revenue is recorded.

Share based compensation

The Company operates a share option plan, phant@ame plan, restricted share unit plan, performast@e unit plan,
profits interests plan and a long-term incentivaenplor employees. The grant date fair values al®ilzded using valuation
models, which use a number of assumptions and &sténincluding expected volatility, the risk-fregerest rate, the
dividend yield, the non-marketability discount ahd expected life of the grants. Details of thessmumptions and estimates
are set out in note 19.

Income taxes

The Company recognizes expected liabilities fordaged on an estimation of the likely taxes dudchvrequires judgment
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as to the ultimate tax determination of certaimie In addition, the Company has made estimatdstarfe profitability in
relation to an assessment of the recoverabilitaofosses. Details of the tax charge and defdeedre set out in note 7.

Pensions and employee benefits

The Company operates various defined benefit fflanigs employees. The present value of the pléabilities recognized
at the balance sheet date and net financing chaegegnized in the consolidated statements of &bssdependent on the
interest rate of high quality corporate bonds. ©key assumptions within this calculation are basednarket conditions or
estimates of future events, including mortalityegtas set out in note 17.

Lease accounting

The Company leases a significant number of stocations as part of its operations. The determinatib classification
between finance and operating leases requiresxiiieise of management judgment, including estimafefair value, the
useful and economic lives of the leased assetsiistence of lower than market renewal options @mgropriate discount
rates. Finance leases and operating leases atesskstin notes 14 and 16 respectively.

NOTE 4. ACQUISITION OF SAKS

On November 4, 2013, the Company acquired all efisBued and outstanding shares of Saks (otherstienes owned by
Saks and its subsidiaries, the Company or Mergdr) $or U.S.$16.00 per share in an all-cash tramsactalued at
U.S.$2,973.2 million ($3,096.6 million), includirtebt assumed.

Saks is an omni-channel luxury retailer offeringwae assortment of distinctive fashion apparel, eshoaccessories,
jewellery, cosmetics and gifts. The operations @fsSconsist of 41 Saks stores and Digital Commepegations as well as
71 OFF 5TH stores.

The Acquisition consideration of $2,797.0 milliorasvfinanced through a subscription receipts ofeiinote 20), the
issuance of common shares pursuant to equity cameniis to H.S. Investment L.P. (“HSILP”), an entitffiliated with

Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board, and to Wast [Eong Term Opportunities Global Master L.P. (“Wi#d”), a fund
advised by West Face Capital Inc. (note 20), aedrhurrence of U.S.$2,000.0 million and U.S.$30@ilion term loans
(note 14). As consideration for the equity conmngihts of HSILP and WF Fund, the Company issued ®illlbn warrants
(notes 18 and 20).

The following table summarizes the estimated faiug of the consideration given and the fair vaasigned to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

L= ] o PP PPPRR 313
Trade and Other FECEIVADIES............ii ettt esb e b s emns e reesnee s 67.8
LAY 1 (] =T PP 1,096.5
OFNEI CUIMENT ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt e bt e b e e e b et e b et e se e e e bt e e E et e ebs e e sab e e s b et e nbeesabeeebeeeneneesane s e 50.3
Property, plant and EQUIDIMENT ..........i i ceeeceieee et e e s e e e st e e e e e e e s n e e e s e n e e e s snnemr e e e s nnnnee e, 2,413.7
INTANGIDIE BSSELS .....eeiiiiieieee it ettt e e ettt e e e e e R et e e e R et e e e R et e e R e e e E e e e e e e e e e e e e nn e 682.4
(€10 ToTo 1V 1 T T T PO T PR TP P PP PP OPROPPOPRT 199.7
(@1 g 1T = L] = PRSPPI 4.1
Loans and borrowings — revolving Credit faCility...........ccuviiiiiii e (298.9)
Loans and borrowings — fiNANCE IEASES ......ccccreiii it nnre e e s (123.3)
LOANS and DOITOWINGS — Ot ...t eeemme ettt ettt e et e e et e e e e b bt e e e e abb e e e e anbb e e e e san s et a e e e s nnnneas (2.2)
LT L= o 1= 1772 Lo =T PP (275.1)
Other payables and accrued lIAabilItIES .......ccoue i s e e (222.4)
DETEITEA FEVEINUE .......eii ittt cmmmmm ettt e et e e ekt e e e e e oo Rt e e ekt e e e n et e e e nn et e e e e et e eamnn e e e s nne e e e ans e s (41.4)
[ (01 R [o] o T PP PP PP PPPPTPPOPPPP (50.8)
Deferred taxX HADITIES .........ooiiiiie e ceee e e e e et e e s re e e s s e e e e e e e e e (637.9)
Pensions and employee DENETIES ........ooii e (29.2)
(O] 1 g T=T g TF=T o1 11T S T T O T T O T PO T PP PURPURP T (67.6)
Total identifiable net assets acquired and CONSIAALION GIVEN .........ccoiiiiiiiiiieiee et eme e e e 2,797.0
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The Company has not yet finalized the purchasee@ilocation including goodwill and therefore, théormation disclosed
above for identifiable net assets acquired is stligechange.

The analysis for the allocation of goodwill to CGbisgroups of CGUs which will benefit from the sygies has not yet
been completed and as such, goodwill cannot babtglallocated at this time. This is the casehasGompany is still in the
process of identifying total synergies and wherteims of groups of CGUs these synergies will ladized. Given goodwill
cannot be reliably allocated and no indicationsngfairment of goodwill have been identified as abfuary 1, 2014, the
Company did not perform testing for impairment obdwill as at February 1, 2014. The initial allboa of goodwill is
required to be completed by the end of fiscal 2014.

The Company believes goodwill identified relatesmarily to synergies which are expected to be aclbie over a 36-
month period. These synergies are currently expeoctée realized in the following areas:

e Administration and other shared services: Redupemses by expanding the existing multi-banner share
service organization to include Saks.

» Store expenses: Leverage increased purchasingfecalen-merchandise items.

» IT infrastructure and Digital Commerce: Capital@me Saks’ recent IT system enhancements in order to
maximize Digital Commerce business across alllrbtainers and to reorganize certain business [seséds
fully leverage a consolidated IT infrastructure aodrounding network architecture and tools.

e Gross profit: Leverage the OFF 5TH infrastructureniore efficiently clear residual merchandise fralin
banners. Achieve greater purchasing power of medika across all banners.

Retail sales and net loss of Saks included in thesalidated statement of net loss for fiscal 2003%1,006.1 million and

$63.1 million respectively. If the Acquisition hadcurred on February 3, 2013, consolidated retdés and consolidated
net loss of the Company would have been $7,556liBmand $229.8 million respectively, for the yeamded February 1,
2014.

The Company has incurred acquisition-related co&t$104.0 million related to external legal feesnsulting fees, due
diligence costs and investment banking fees. Thests have been included in selling, general amdrasirative expenses
and finance costs in the consolidated statemeritssf

The Company expects no amount of goodwill to beudgblle for tax purposes.

NOTE 5. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

The following table includes depreciation and amation of both continuing and discontinued openadi

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Property, plant and EQUIPIMENT ........o i e e e e e e s s e e nb e e e e e enes 128.5 88.7
T e T g Lo 1o LoI= TSI (PSPPSR 46.3 34.6
(D12 (=T =T o [ od £=To KOOSR PP RPN (3.0) (9.8)
L@ {01 PP PP PRRP P 3.8 (4.4

175.6 109.1
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NOTE 6. FINANCE COSTS

2012
(restated — see
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 note 2(z))

Interest expense 0N [0NG-tErM DOITOWINGS ceceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiie it e e e eees 60.9 61.9
Interest expense 0N SNOt-tEIM DOITOWINGS. cun e et rutrrrteeeiiitiet e e e e ettt e e e sree e e s et e e e e sbbe e e e e e ensans 20.5 25.4
Write-off of deferred financing COStS (NOTE LAY .. .cccoiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie et 12.8 14.4

Net interest on pensions and employee benefi® (17) ............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1.6 (0.2)

INEEIEST INCOIME... .o e sab e s e s e e (0.6) (0.9)

Fair value movement of embedded deriVative ..., — (3.5)
Total INtEreSt EXPENSE, NET ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e et b et e e e eeeeaaasasbeebeeseeeeeaaaaaaaeans 95.2 97.1
Finance related costs on Warrants (NOE 18)...cce iii oottt e e e e e e aaaaeeeas 0.1 —
Change in fair value of Equity Commitment Forvgafdote 18)..........coooriiiiiiiiiiiiiicereee e 153.2 —
Dividend equivalent 0N SUDSCIIPLION FECEIPLS wmrrrrrrrreriieiiirieeeeeeeiesisesesiireree e e e e e e e eeeaeee e s e e s asssnennnennes 1.1 —
Bridge financing tranSaction fEES.......ccccooee e aa e 11.7 —
Acquisition-related fINANCE COSIS ... ..uuiiiiiiiiiiii it e b emen e e e e e e nnneeas 166.1 —
261.3 97.1

In connection with financing the Acquisition, th@i@pany secured a bridge financing facility in tlmoant of U.S.$900.0
million to fund potential delays related to closittge uncommitted equity and debt financing trarieast Although the
facility was not drawn upon, the Company incurreghsaction fees related to the facility which h&e=n included in
finance costs.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The major components of the income tax benefitthedstatutory income tax rate for fiscal 2013 a@@i2are as follows:

2012
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 see note 2(2))
CUITENT TAX DENETIL ...ttt ettt e st e e s e e s e e nnneas 3.7 (22.4)
Deferred tax (DENEfit) EXPENSE .. .....v i e s (74.8) 13.0
INCOME taX DENETIL ..o s (78.5) (9.4
STAtULOrY INCOME TAX FALE ...eiiii ittt eceeeite et ettt e e e sttt e e s sttt e e e s s b aa e e e e e s annaeneeeas 26.3% 26.9%

Reconciliations of the income tax benefit at thewabrates with the amounts shown in the consolitistgtements of loss are
as follows:

2012
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 see note 2(z))
(Loss) earnings before income tax — CONtiNUING BRGNS ............ccuvviiieiiiiiieee e (254.2) 18.4
Income tax (benefit) expense calculated at StafutmoOmMe taXx rate............ceveeviievvvvmcmmeeeeeeennnn, (66.9) 4.9
Change in income taxes resulting from:
Permanent differENCES. ... ... e e 55.5 —
Decrease in valuation alloWaNCE............ccoceriiiiiiiiiii e (52.8) —
Effect of international tax rate differentialS............ccccoooeviiiiii e (18.9) (2.6)
L&T deferred tax assets on change in taxX StatUS........ovvvveeeeeeiiii e — (5.5)
L1 T PP P PP PRPPRP 4.6 1.7
(78.5) (4.9
Effect of tax rate changes on deferred tax balances..............ccuveeieee — (4.5)
INCOME TAX DENETIL ..ot e e e e e e e e et e e e e et e e e e esta e e e eebaneeeens (78.5) (9.4)




The changes in the components of net deferredssetsiand liabilities for fiscal 2013 and 2012asdollows:

Year ended February 1, 2014

Assumed Transferred Recognized
through from assets of Recognized in other Net foreign
(millions of Canadian Feb 2, business discontinued innet  comprehensive Recognized ~currency Feb 1,
dollars) 2013 combination operations loss income (loss) in equity exchange 2014
Property, plant and
equipment.............. 99.6 (504.3) 11.7 (39.5) — — (33.5) (466.0)
Employee benefits..... 18.2 — 6.4 (2.0) 0.3 — — 229
Pensions..........cc....... (10.0) 4.8 — 12.3 (15.9) — 1.0 (7.8)
Other assets.............. 8.1 (206.5) (20.2) 20.8 — — (16.0) (213.8)
Long-term liabilities
and other................ 36.3 21.6 24.1 (43.7) 3.2 4.7 2.1 48.3
Tax losses and other
carryforward
amounts................. 65.1 59.5 36.5 74.1 — — 7.2 2424
217.3 (624.9) 58.5 22.0 (12.4) 4.7 (39.2) (374.0)
Valuation allowance.. (7.8) (13.0) (43.5) 52.8 — — (0.7) (12.2)
Net deferred tax
assets (liabilities)... 2095  (637.9) 15.0 74.8 (12.4) 4.7 (39.9) (386.2)
Comprising:
Deferred tax assets... 209.5 248.7
Deferred tax liabilities — (634.9)
209.5 (386.2)
Year ended February 2, 2013 (restated — see not¢z)
Transferred Recognized
to assets of Recognized in other Recognized
Jan28, discontinued in net comprehensive in equity or Feb 2,
(millions of Canadian dollars) __Operations loss income (loss) other 2013
Property, plant and equipment..................... 107.0 (3.3) (4.2) — — 99.6
Employee benefits .........ccccccvviiiiiiiiieeeeennn. 19.3 (4.3) 2.5 0.7 — 18.2
Pensions ... (23.1) — 6.1 7.0 — (10.0)
Financial instruments.............cccoooiiieeeeeee. (0.2) — — 0.1 — —
Other aSSetS....couivieeeeeiiiei et 84.9 (45.5) 47.7) — 16.4 8.1
Long-term liabilities and othetr...................... (9.0) (10.6) 54.0 — 1.9 36.3
Tax losses carried forward.................cccceeeee. 123.0 (40.8) (17.1) — — 65.1
302.0 (104.5) (6.3) 7.8 18.3 217.3
Valuation allowance ...........cccccccceeveescomunnee.. (44.5) 43.4 (6.7) — — (7.8)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)............... 257.5 (61.1) (13.0) 7.8 18.3 209.5

The realization of the deferred income tax assetiependent on the generation of future taxablenmecduring the years in
which those temporary differences become deducti¥dsed on management’s projection of future taxattome and tax
planning strategies, management expects to rehkze net deferred income tax assets in advareeal.

Temporary differences for which no deferred tax esn recognized:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

2013 2012

Investments in subsidiaries and partnerships.
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As at February 1, 2014, the Company’s taxableiestihcluding discontinued operations have nontehfax losses carried
forward of $796.5 million (February 2, 2013: $43inélion) available in the United States and Canaddollows (millions
of Canadian dollars):

Available until year ending 2013
JANUBIY 2026 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e a4 oo o e E e e e et ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e o e e e n e e et e e e aeeeea e e e s 44.6
JANUBIY 2027 ...ttt ekttt ettt ettt e e e e e o4 4o o4 e E e e e et et ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e et e e e eeeeeaeeaa s 97.7
JANUAIY 2028 ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e e e a4 oo o E e e e e et ettt et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e b er e et e e e e e e e aae e e s 215.9
JANUAIY 2029 ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e oo e 4o E e et ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e et e e e aeeeeaeeaa s 15.8
JANUATNY 2030 ..ttt eemmmm e oo oot e ettt e ettt bt oo oo oo e e ettt et et eeeeebeha oo e oo e eeee et et tbebah e e e e eeeeaeeeaeeeeantannanan 88.3
JANUAIY 203 ..ottt eemmmm oo oo e oo ettt ettt bt oo oo oo e e e e et eeeeeet et baba oo oo oo e eeee ettt tetbah e e e e e e e eaaeeeeeeeeanrennanan 11.7
JANUATY 2032 ...t eemmmm oo e oo ettt e et te b b oo oo oo e e e e et ee et eettebe b a oo oo e e eeeeeee ettt bah e e e e eeeaaeeeeeeeeanrannanan 5.6
JANUAIY 2033 ..ottt eemmmm oo oo oot e et e ettt tebb o e oo oo e e e e et ee et eee et baba oo oo e e eeeeee et eteba b e e e e e eeeaaeaeeeeeeanrratanan 5.3
JANUBIY 2034 ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e ettt et e e e e e e e et e e n e et e e e e e e e e e e e aa s 311.6

796.5
NOTE 8. CASH

For the purpose of the consolidated statementasti lows, cash includes cash on hand and in ban#snvestments in
money market instruments. Cash as at February14 8Ad February 2, 2013 as shown in the consotidagtance sheets is
comprised of the following:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012

(0T o O PP RRURUPRPPR 19.2 43.0

[ LT (e (=10 [ o7= U= o [OOSR TP 1.6 5.3
_208 _ 483

NOTE 9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, taadeother receivables are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012

TradE FECEIVADIES .....uviiiiiii ittt et e e e e e ettt eree e et e eeeeeeeeeeseess bbbt s e seaeeeeeesessssesrnnes 40.8 155

OLNETI TECEIVADIES ... ..ottt et et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e e astneeeeeesanns 96.4 58.8

137.2 743

On January 4, 2013, the Company sold its leaseht#dests in a property for U.S.$10.0 million ofielin U.S.$3.4 million
was received upon transfer of the related properntylJanuary 31, 2013 and the second instalment & B@lion was
received on January 31, 2014. The balance of U.B.8@8lion is due on January 31, 2015. Accordingly February 1,
2014, U.S.$3.3 million (February 2, 2013: U.S.$8lion) was included in other receivables and (fiebruary 2, 2013:
U.S.$3.3 million) in other long-term assets.

The fair value of trade and other receivables axiprates their carrying values because of the steonh nature of these
accounts. No valuation allowance was required atehd of either reporting period. Other receivalitesnly comprise
sundry receivables from vendors.

NOTE 10. INVENTORIES

Inventories on hand at February 1, 2014 and Fepr2aP013 were available for sale. The cost of im@nclise inventories
related to continuing operations recognized as ms@dor fiscal 2013 was $3,216.8 million (2012:487,.0 million). The

write-down of merchandise inventories below coshéb realizable value relating to continuing opera as at February 1,
2014 was $47.4 million (February 2, 2013: $33.9liam). There was no reversal of write-downs pregigutaken on

merchandise inventories that are no longer estonttesell below cost. Inventory has been pledgedeasirity for certain

borrowing agreements as described in note 14.
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NOTE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended February 1, 2014

Assets
held under
Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance
(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year .......... 473.4 568.7 273.1 375.8 48.1 1,739.1
AddItionsS .....ovveeieei — 46.8 52.0 128.7 4.8 232.3
Acquired through business
combination .........ccccceeveeiiiinnnnnn. 516.3 1,324.4 1034 252.8 216.8 2,413.7
DiSpPOSalS.....ceeeeiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiies — (0.2) (1.2) (2.2) — (3.3)
Transfers ... — 0.5 (0.5) — — —
Net foreign currency exchange........ 65.2 142.8 29.0 45.7 15.1 297.8
Balance at end of yeat................. 1,054.9 2,083.1 455.9 800.9 284.8 4,679.6
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Balance at beginning of year .......... 4.9 129.6 70.0 171.1 28.5 404.1
Depreciation expense.........ccccceee.... — 41.6 24.7 53.3 8.9 128.5
Impairment l0SSES ...........euvvveeeeeenenn. — — 1.6 25 — 4.1
Eliminated on disposal.................... — — (0.2) (2.2) — (2.2)
Net foreign currency exchange........ — 14.2 5.8 14.5 0.2 34.7
Balance at end of yeat................. 4.9 185.4 102.0 239.3 37.6 569.2
Net book value at end of yeat..... 1,050.0 1,897.7 353.9 561.6 247.2 4,110.4
Year ended February 2, 2013
Assets
held under
Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance
(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year .......... 484.6 518.3 354.7 407.7 50.8 1,816.1
AddItioNS ... — 51.8 39.5 67.9 — 159.2
DiSpPOSalS.....ceeveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee, — — (5.1) (8.7) (2.0) (14.8)
Transfers to discontinued
OperationS.........cceeeeeeeiiiiiicciiies (10.3) (0.2) (115.3) (90.5) a.7) (218.0)
Net foreign currency exchange........ (0.9) (1.2) (0.7) (0.6) — (3.4)
Balance at end of year..........c.......... 473.4 568.7 273.1 375.8 48.1 1,739.1
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Balance at beginning of year .......... — 105.5 94.7 191.3 23.5 415.0
Depreciation expense..........ccccee..... — 22.9 16.9 324 6.9 79.1
Impairment l0SSES ........c.ccvvvvvveveennnn. 4.9 1.6 1.3 4.1 — 11.9
Eliminated on disposal.................... — — (4.3) (8.1) (1.3) (13.7)
Transfers to discontinued
OpPerationS........cccceeeeeeeeiieeeccciinns — — (38.5) (48.2) (0.6) (87.3)
Net foreign currency exchange........ — (0.4) (0.1) (0.4) — (0.9)
Balance at end of year..................... 4.9 129.6 70.0 171.1 28.5 404.1
Net book value at end of year ......... 468.5 439.1 203.1 204.7 19.6 1,335.0

Depreciation expense has been included in seljegeral and administrative expenses in the coraelidstatements of loss.
Certain fixed assets have been pledged as seforriborrowings, as further described in note 1here were $53.0 million
in material capital commitments, net of leasehoigriovement allowances at February 1, 2014.
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Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment

During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company carriedaoteview of its cash generating units (“CGU’'s3)determine if there
was any indication that impairment had occurrecthat a previously recorded impairment had rever$be review led to
the recognition of an impairment loss of $4.1 milli(2012: $11.9 million) in fiscal 2013 relating ¥arious store based
CGU'’s, on a value in use basis, which has beergréeed in net loss.

The impairment losses incurred in fiscal 2013 eetata decline in operating performance of certéiime Oultfitters stores
(2012: $0.8 million) which affected the leasehattbrovements and fixtures and fittings asset classesddition, in fiscal
2012 impairment losses of $11.1 million were inedrrelated to logistics centre assets and theidads exit the Lord &

Taylor Home specialty business which resulted i tlosure of two stores.

impairment losses were freehold land, buildingaséhold improvements and fixtures and fittings.

The main asset clasdestedl by these

The recoverable amount of the relevant assetsmwithth CGU was determined in each case as therlogffer value less
costs to sell, or value in use. In calculating tadue in use, management estimates future casts flesing approved
budgets/forecasts for the following fiscal year amhsiders future opportunities and risks in debteimy an appropriate

growth rate for future periods.

NOTE 12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Year ended February 1, 2014

Private

Favourable label Banner Credit
(millions of Canadian dollars) Goodwill Software leaserights brands _names _ cards Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year ................commm e eeeeeeienns — 203.7 130.5 27.4 — — 361.6
AdItIONS ..eoeeiiie e — 48.1 — — — — 48.1
Acquired through business combination............. 199.7 65.8 205.3 20.8 364.5 26.0 8821
DISPOSAIS......uviriiiiiiiiiiiiieeie e e e eemeen e aenns — (11.6) — — — — (11.6)
Net foreign currency exchange............coceeeeee. 13.9 8.2 29.5 46 253 1.8 83.3
Balance atend of year............ccccvvviiiiiiiicenienneen. 213.6 314.2 365.3 52.8 389.8 27.8 1,363.5
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance at beginning of the year ...........cceeei. — 111.0 17.6 — — — 128.6
Amortization eXPENSEe .......ccveveeeeeiiiiiiiiiceee e — 37.5 7.6 — — 1.2 46.3
DISPOSAIS. .. ..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie e — (10.8) — — — — (10.8)
Net foreign currency exchange..............ceeeeeeee... — 1.7 2.6 — — 0.1 4.4
Balance atend of year...........cccccvvvviriiiiieeseeeen, — 139.4 27.8 — — 1.3 1685
Net book value at end of year...............ccccccnnnnen 213.6 174.8 337.5 52.8 389.8 26.5 1,195.0

Year ended February 2, 2013

Favourable Private label

(millions of Canadian dollars) Software lease rights brands Total
Cost

Balance at beginning of year 160.3 130.9 27.5 318.7
AAITIONS <.ttt e e e e e e e e 43.6 — — 43.6
DISPOSAIS .. ueeieeiiiiiiii e eerere e ———————————————— (0.2) — — (0.2)
Net foreign currency eXChange ...........ooo oo (0.2) (0.4) (0.1) (0.6)
Balance at end Of YEar.........uuuviiiiiiii e e 203.7 130.5 27.4 361.6
Accumulated amortization and iIMPaIrMEeNt ... ....eevieiieeiiiiiiiiieeaaeeee

Balance at beginning of YEar .............o e eeeeeeeiiiiea 79.4 14.7 — 94.1
AMOTtiZAtION EXPENSE ...ttt eete et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeas 31.6 3.0 — 34.6
Net foreign currency eXChange ..............eccceeeieiiiiieiiiiie s — (0.2) — (0.1)
Balance at end Of YEar.........uuuviiiiiiiiccee e 111.0 17.6 — 128.6
Net book value at €nd Of YEAI ............ewcwmmmmmeeeeeerierieeee e e e e e s e s 92.7 112.9 27.4 233.0




The banner names and private label brands havedsséggned an indefinite useful life, as there igareseeable limit to the
period over which the assets are expected to geneed cash inflows and management’s intentioo isontinue to utilize
these trade names for the foreseeable future.

Amortization expense has been included in sellgeneral and administrative expenses in the coraelidstatements of
loss.

NOTE 13. OTHER LIABILITIES

As at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 othbilities are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012

D LS) (] 1o =] 01T a1 LU (o1 =Y g 1= 11 £ 122.0 32.4

(@1 Yo (=) (T (=To I VLT LU 13.3 15.3

(@) (ST @ [ o 11 ST 61.3 41.1
196.6 88.8

NOTE 14. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

a) Current loans and borrowings

As at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, cutoans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
HBC ReVOIVING Credit FACIIILY ........ciiiiiiieeeeiie ettt s e e e s e e e s s snnneeeeee s 87.6 —
U.S. ReVOIVING Credit FACIILY ...........eiii ettt ettt e e et bee e e e e e e e e e e enneees 417.7 —
Lord & Taylor Revolving Credit FACIIILY ... ..eieiiereieiieiiieeee e e e e e sseeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e s ennnnnnnes — 137.8
Current portion of long-term loans and DOIMOWINGS............oviiiiiiiiiiie e 53.9 9.9
559.2 147.7
LeSS: UNAMOTTIZEA COSES .......uiiiiiiiii i (27.6) (15.6)
531.6 132.1

HBC Revolving Credit Facility

HBC is the borrower on an asset based credit fa¢ttie “HBC Revolving Credit Facility”) with a syicate of lenders made
available through a credit agreement (the “Credjte®ment”).

On June 15, 2012, the Company executed an amendmémt HBC Revolving Credit Facility. The amendinertended

the maturity date to June 15, 2017 and reducedrédit limit to $1,100.0 million until May 1, 201&nd further reduced to
$750.0 million as of May 1, 2013 as a result of tbever borrowing base associated with continuingrafions. In

connection with this reduction in the credit lin#g.3 million of deferred financing costs were tenit off (note 6).

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is subject to artowing base, based predominantly on eligible imegy and eligible
credit card receivables of HBC and certain of itbssdiaries (excluding L&T Acquisition and its sidiaries). The HBC
Revolving Credit Facility is available for genemdrporate purposes. The HBC Revolving Credit Rgciias multiple
interest rate charge options that are based oB8dheadian prime rate, CDOR rate, U.S. index ratelaBOR.

As the HBC Revolving Credit Facility is availablerfand used to finance working capital requiremecdgpital expenditures
and other general corporate purposes, it has dasaified in the consolidated balance sheets asobpawurrent loans and
borrowings. The Company is not required to refreytialance outstanding as at February 1, 2014 thatmaturity date of
June 15, 2017.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is secured byimstfpriority security interest over all inventoaynd accounts receivable
in Canada. The Credit Agreement contains a numberpzesentations and warranties and positive agditive covenants.
These provisions include, among other things, ptacertain conditions and restrictions on makingd#ind payments. The
Credit Agreement also contains extensive reportagirements and a number of events of default.

HBC was in compliance with all covenants contaimethe Credit Agreement as at February 1, 2014Fetduary 2, 2013.
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The effective interest rate based on the averafgmta drawn and finance costs of the HBC Revolwngdit Facility for
fiscal 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis...........cccccuviiiiiiiiii 161.6 275.4
FINAINCE COSES...iiiiiitiiiiie ettt s ettt e ket e e ookttt e e e e ek b e e e e e e e e bbbt e e e e e anb b et e e e e e anbneeeeeeeennnnnes 10.6 19.2
EffECHIVE INTEIESE FALE ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e s e e oot b bttt e et eteeeaaaaaaaaaaaaeeaaaaannnnanees 6.6% 7.0%

As at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, datéilhe borrowing base availability on the HBC Bleing Credit Facility
were as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Gross borrowing base availability ... 478.5 560.7
DTz 1T g To OO U PO UU TR PUUROUPROT (87.6) —
Outstanding [etters Of Credit... ... ..o e e e eees (9.3) (14.4)
Borrowing base availability net of drawings anddes of credit............ccccoviiiiiieiiieeecie e, 381.6 546.3

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility

In connection with the Acquisition, the L&T and Sakevolving credit facilities were refinanced thgbua new U.S.
revolving credit facility. L&T Acquisition is the drrower pursuant to an asset based credit faailith Bank of America,
N.A. as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agetii (S. Revolving Credit Facility”), dated November2D13.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility provides a U$8.0 million revolving line of credit through Nowber 4, 2018. This
revolving line of credit is subject to a borrowibhgse, based predominantly on eligible inventoryfangiture and fixtures of
L&T, Saks and their respective subsidiaries. Th8.WRevolving Credit Facility is available to firgnworking capital
needs, capital expenditures, operating activitiesta support the issuance of standby letterseditr The U.S. Revolving
Credit Facility has multiple interest rate chargdians that are based on the U.S. prime rate, Bé&ends rate and LIBOR.

As the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is availalite and used to finance working capital requireragnapital expenditures
and other operating activities, it has been clasbkifn the consolidated balance sheets as partuokmt loans and
borrowings. However, the Company is not requiredepay the balance outstanding as at February14,2until the
maturity date of November 4, 2018.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility agreement camsarestrictive covenants including restrictions tbe incurrence of
indebtedness, financial maintenance covenantsjate®mts on capital expenditures and restrictiongpayments to affiliates
and shareholders and also includes events of defaptesentations and warranties.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is secured bfirat lien security interest over all inventory aadcounts receivables in
the United States (L&T and Saks).

The effective interest rate based on the averagmba drawn and finance costs of the U.S. Revol@nedit Facility for
fiscal 2013 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily DASIS..........ccoiiriiiiiiiiii e s 362.4
FINANCE COSES ....oiiiiiiitiiiiiie i i e e e e e et ettt et s e e e e e e e e e e e eeebe b e aaaaaesaaeeeseeese s s s b e b s seeeeeaeeseesssssbarannssnnaseeeaees 3.2
EffECTIVE INTEIEST FALE . ..iiiiiiiiiiteii sttt e e et e e e e et et e e ettt s e s eeeeeaeeeeeeesesae b e b e e eseaeeeseseessssssbasnnsenesseeesnsnres 3.6%

As at February 1, 2014, details of the borrowingebavailability on the U.S. Revolving Credit Fagilivas as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013
Gross borrowing base availability ... s 1,058.1
D= 11T T o PP UTPTTPPRRSRN (417.7)
Outstanding standby [€tters Of CrEUit...... e veeeieiiiiiiiii e ree e e e e s e sebaee e, (9.2
Borrowing base availability net of drawings anddes of credit............ocvvviiiiiiiiiiceece 631.2
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The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility contains certaion-financial operating covenants. L&T Acquisitisias in compliance
with all covenants as of February 1, 2014.

In accordance with the U.S. Revolving Credit FagilL&T Acquisition is limited in its ability to miee distributions of
earnings or return of capital to its parent.

Lord & Taylor Revolving Credit Facility

On May 23, 2013 the Company and General Electrit@aCorporation (“GE Capital”) executed the Se¢dmended and
Restated Credit Agreement (the “Lord & Taylor Ctdehcility”) that provided a revolving line of crigdthe “Lord & Taylor
Revolving Credit Facility”) and a U.S.$200.0 mitid’erm Loan (the “Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term L@ and replaced
the then existing credit facility with GE Capitallhe Lord & Taylor Credit Facility was scheduledrt@ture on May 23,
2018.

On November 4, 2013, the Lord & Taylor Revolvinge@it Facility was repaid in full in connection withe Acquisition.

On September 28, 2012, as permitted in the Lordagldr Revolving Credit Facility agreement, the Camp increased the
revolving line of credit from U.S.$300.0 million 13.5.$350.0 million. The Lord & Taylor Revolvingr&lit Facility
allowed borrowings based on an advance rate aip(fo 100% of eligible third party credit card readbles; (i) 95% of the
net orderly liquidation value of eligible inventorgnd (iii) 95% of the appraised net orderly lication value of the eligible
furniture and fixtures. Interest was charged am ltbrd & Taylor Revolving Credit Facility at LIBORplus 2.25% based
upon the availability schedule. The Lord & Tayloewlving Credit Facility was utilized to finance wng capital needs,
capital expenditures, operating activities and upp®rt the issuance of standby letters of credigilite L&T accounts
receivable, inventory and furniture and fixturegevpledged as security for the Lord & Taylor RewodvCredit Facility.

The effective interest rate based on the avera@gnt@ drawn and finance costs of the Lord & Tayavolving Credit
Facility for fiscal 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis............cccccviiiiiiiiii e 182.1 168.4
FINANCE COSES......oiiiiiiiiiii ittt 56 5.4
BT CTIVE INEEIEST FALE ..evvvititiiie it ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e eeeeee e s e bbb eseeeeeeeaeeesssrebaraaneeeeeeas 4.1% 3.2%

As at February 2, 2013, details of the borrowingebavailability on the Lord & Taylor Revolving Cieéacility were as
follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2012

Gross borrowing base availability ... e a e 312.5
3 - TV 1 PP (137.8)
Outstanding standby [€HErS Of CrEUIL ... e eeeiiiiiiiie e e e eree e e e e e s snbaeeeeeesanees (2.2)
Borrowing base availability net of drawings anddet of credit.............ooooiiiiiiiiiiieee e 172.5

The Lord & Taylor Revolving Credit Facility cont&d certain non-financial operating covenants. L&Isvin compliance
with all covenants as at February 2, 2013.

In accordance with the Lord & Taylor Revolving CiteBacility, L&T was limited in its ability to makelistributions of
earnings or return of capital to its parent.

In connection with the refinancing of the Lord &ylar Revolving Credit Facility, $1.7 million of defred financing costs
were written off.
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b) Long-term loans and borrowings

As at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, lengrioans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
ST a1l T =T a I o Y- T o N TSR 2,227.6 —
[0 ][ g = 1 0 ¢ 1 o =1 o LSOO P PP P PSPPI 334.1 —
YOTKABIE MOTTGAGE .....evveeeeeeiiietieee e sttt e 4ttt e e 4ttt e e 4ot e e e e bttt e e e e bbb et e e e e nbb e e e e e e e annrnes 49.4 —
(o] (o I I 1Y (o] Y (o] g o F= Vo PO PP P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPP 278.5 2493
HBC Term Loan (Canadian PrOPEItIES) ........cccceaeiiiaaaaaaiaaiiaa ettt e et e e eeaaaaae s e e s aaaannnenbbeseeeeeeeeeeeas — 250.0
Lord & Taylor Term Loan (U.S. PrOPEITIES) ...eeeeaiiiiiiiiiiiiitiieeiieieeeea e e e e e e e e e e s et e e eeaeeaaaaaaaaaaaaanan — 204.7
(@1 1= g gTo ] (o F= Vo =2 PRSP SRPR 9.8 11.7
Real eState fiNANCE [BASES .........ii ittt 118.1 —
Equipment finance leases and Other ....... .o 42.7 25.9
3,060.2 741.6
LeSS: UNAMOITIZEO COSES ...eiiiuriiiiiiriieeeieee ettt e e e et e e s ne e e s nn e e s nnnes (83.0) (13.2)
Less: amounts due WIthin ONE YEA .........eeeeeeeiee ettt e et e e e et e e e e inree s (53.9) (9.9

2,923.3 7185

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:
2004 e —————— e+ttt et t£ ek bt e e 4 oAb £t o4k b e e e eaRe e e 4k be e e oAb et a4 oA be e e e eRbee e e eRee e e e ehbeeeaabe e e s anenbeeeannes 53.9

Senior Term Loan B

On November 4, 2013, in connection with the closirighe Acquisition, the Company entered into aneagent for a
U.S.$2,000.0 million senior secured term loan fgc{l‘Senior Term Loan B”) with Bank of America, dse administrative
agent.

The Senior Term Loan B matures November 4, 2020candes an initial interest at a rate of LIBOR$R175% per annum.
The agreement is structured such that LIBOR wildbemed to be not less than 1% per annum (“LIBARIF). The Senior
Term Loan B is subject to quarterly principal repaynts equal to 0.25% and mandatory prepayments.SEn@r Term
Loan B is secured by a second lien over all invgnémd accounts receivables, a first lien over sutimlly all other assets
as well as a pledge of the shares of certain o€rapany’s subsidiaries.

A portion of the proceeds from the Senior Term LB8awas used to repay in full the HBC Term Loan #relLord & Taylor
GE Capital Term Loan, while the remainder was uadthancing the Acquisition. In connection withetlhepayment of the
HBC Term Loan and Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term 00&0.9 million and $4.3 million of deferred finang costs were
written off, respectively.

On February 25, 2014, HBC paid down U.S. $150.0anilof the Senior Term Loan B (note 29).

Junior Term Loan

Concurrently with the close of Senior Term LoantlBe Company obtained an incremental junior secteed facility of
U.S.$300.0 million (the “Junior Term Loan”). Thendor Term Loan was scheduled to mature on Novemb2021 and had
an initial interest rate of LIBOR (with a LIBOR Ko plus 7.25% per annum. The remaining credit $eofithe Junior Term
Loan were substantially consistent with the Seflierm Loan B with the exception that the Junior Tdroan was not
subject to quarterly principal repayments.
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The Junior Term Loan was secured by a third lieer @i of the Company’s inventory and accountsikedse, a second lien
over substantially all other assets as well asedgs of the shares of certain of the Company’sidigties. Proceeds from
the Junior Term Loan were used to finance the Agitjon. On February 25, 2014, HBC paid down andeadtthe Junior
Term Loan in full (note 29).

Yorkdale Mortgage

On May 22, 2013 the Company entered into an agreemi¢h Murray & Company Holdings Limited for a $80million
mortgage (the “Yorkdale Mortgage”). The Yorkdale mmge matures in 10 years, bears interest at 4[@3%nnum over a
25 year amortization schedule and is secured bysarhortgage of a leasehold interest of the Hutis&ay store at the
Yorkdale Shopping Centre in Toronto, Ontario. Tineceeds of the Yorkdale Mortgage were used tdgiigrprepay the
HBC Term Loan. In connection with the prepaym&6t3 million of deferred financing costs were venittoff.

Lord & Taylor Mortgage

On September 7, 2012, LT 424 LLC (“LT 424"), whishan indirect subsidiary of L&T, entered into aSl$250.0 million
syndicated floating rate senior mortgage loan \aithaffiliate of CIBC World Markets Inc., as Admitrigtive Agent of the
syndicate of lenders, which matures on SeptembegQ07 (the “Lord & Taylor Mortgage”). The proceeafsthe Lord &
Taylor Mortgage were used to pay down the Lord &ldaTerm Loan.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage is guaranteed by L&Ttdrest is charged at a rate of LIBOR plus 3% arstrisctured to be
interest only during the first three years, withntidy amortization payments required during thalffitwo years, based on a
30 year amortization schedule at an interest raf#®@ LT 424 has the ability to prepay the Lord &ylor Mortgage after
the first two years with a fee to the lenders of, 2Uich decreases to 1% after three years, andutittees after September
10, 2016. Any prepayments are applied to reducetttee remaining scheduled installments. As secdadtythe Lord &
Taylor Mortgage, LT 424 granted a first priority nrgage on the 5th Avenue Lord & Taylor property.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage contains representaticarsd warranties, positive and negative covenargporting
requirements and events of default. As at FebriaB®014 and February 2, 2013, the Company wasernmptance with the
covenants contained in the Lord & Taylor Mortgage.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interatst swap arrangements, the effect of which isxtthe floating portion
of the interest rate related to the Lord & Tayloot@jage at 0.85%. The swap arrangements are betwuated for as a
hedge (note 18).

HBC Term Loan (Canadian properties)

Concurrently with the closing of the IPO on NovemB6, 2012, the Company entered into an agreemiémBMO Capital
Markets and Canadian Imperial Bank of Commercepalsead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, and cedtier lenders
for a $250.0 million senior non-revolving term Iofacility (the "HBC Term Loan").

The HBC Term Loan was paid in full on November @12, using a portion of the proceeds from the Sehéom Loan B.

The HBC Term Loan had a maturity date of Novemk&r2014, bore interest at the bankers' acceptaateeptus 2.25%
stamping fee and was secured by a first prioritgusgy interest in certain of the real propertytbeé Company and its
subsidiaries (other than L&T and its subsidiari@$lere were certain mandatory repayments in sjelctfircumstances.

The HBC Term Loan contained representations andawtes, positive and negative covenants, reporgngirements and a
number of events of default. The agreement condato®enants to maintain fixed charge coverage everage ratios. As at
February 2, 2013, HBC was in compliance with allemants contained in the HBC Term Loan.

Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan

As part of the Lord & Taylor Credit Facility agreent with GE Capital executed on May 23, 2013, tlenlany was
provided the U.S.$200.0 million Lord & Taylor GE (@l Term Loan. Together with cash on hand, treceeds of the
Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan repaid the La&dTaylor Term Loan (Lender was Credit Suisse Sem#iLLC) in
full. In connection with the repayment of the L&draylor Term Loan, $5.5 million of deferred finang costs were written
off and are included in finance costs (note 6).
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The Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan was repaidill on November 4, 2013, using a portion of pheceeds of the
Senior Term Loan B.

Lord & Taylor Term Loan (U.S. Properties)

L&T was a borrower pursuant to a U.S.$450.0 milleymdicated term loan with Credit Suisse Securitie€ (“CS”), as
sole lead arranger of the syndicate, which was &ure on January 11, 2019 (the “Lord & Taylor Teltman”). On
September 7, 2012, L&T prepaid U.S.$242.5 millidriree Lord & Taylor Term Loan with the net proceexfshe Lord &
Taylor Mortgage. On repayment, $9.4 million of dedel financing costs (note 6) were written off.

Interest was charged on the Lord & Taylor Term Ldapending on the type of borrowing and was basea greater of test
of various rates, including, but not limited toethIBOR rate plus an applicable margin of 4.5%. THBOR rate was
subject to a floor of 1.25%. The weighted averagerest rate of the Lord & Taylor Term Loan at kelry 2, 2013 was
5.97%. The average rate for the year ended Feb2&913 was 5.75%.

On May 23, 2013 the Lord & Taylor Term Loan wasdoii full, using cash on hand along with the pratsef the Lord &
Taylor GE Capital Term Loan.

The Lord & Taylor Term Loan was secured by firshlisecurity on the majority of the owned and groleaded facilities,
excluding the Fifth Avenue L&T flagship store, asdcond priority security on the accounts receivalsieentory and
furniture and fixtures of L&T. The Lord & Taylor Tie Loan contained representations and warrant@stipe and negative
covenants, reporting requirements and events afultefAs at February 2, 2013, L&T was in compliangéh all covenants
contained in the Lord & Taylor Term Loan.

In accordance with the terms of the Lord & Tayl@arif Loan and similar to the Lord & Taylor Revolvi@gedit Facility,
L&T was limited in its ability to make distributi@nof earnings or return of capital to its partn@isese distributions which
had been discontinued as a result of L&T’s acquisiby HBC primarily related to the reimbursemefinzome taxes and
expenses.

L&T Acquisition had guaranteed the Lord & TaylorrfreLoan.
Other mortgages

As at February 1, 2014, HBC had a mortgage outstgndith a principal balance of $9.8 million (Fehry 2, 2013:; $11.7
million) which required payments of $2.8 millionrarally inclusive of interest and a final balloonypeent of $9.6 million
due in February 2014. The final balloon paymens weade subsequent to year end (see note 29). Tdresnon the
mortgage was 7.0% per annum, paid on a monthlygbasi

Finance leases

As at February 1, 2014 the liability related tolrestate finance leases was $118.1 million (Felyr@ar2013: nil), all of
which was assumed through the acquisition of Saks.liability includes $79.1 million primarily retled to presumed lease
renewals that the Company is not contractually cdtachto.

As at February 1, 2014 the liability related to ipguent finance leases was $32.4 million (Februa3d.3: $24.7 million),
$11.8 million of which was assumed through the &itjon of Saks.

The future required minimum gross rental paymemtder finance leases for property and equipmert,their net present
values at February 1, 2014 are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

[T TS =T T 0 T TR =T P 30.1
BEIWEEN 1 NGO 5 YEAIS ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e oo oo oo oot b b ee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aasaaan s nbbbbbbsbe e s e e ammmm s e e s e e ennnn 452.3
Total MINIMUM [EASE PAYMENTS .....oeiiiiii et ccceeiti e e e e e e e e e e e et et s s e e e e e et eeaeeaeeeeaaesaaaaaassnnsesrensreesom e s 482.4
LESS: IMPULEA INEIEST ...ttt et e et e e e e e e o e e o e e et bbbt bbbt e et e e et aeeaaaeeaeeeaanaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaans (331.9)
Total finance [ease ODIGALIONS .......... i e e e s e e e s ab b a e e e s e eeeae s 150.5
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Old HBC Term Loan (Canadian properties)

On November 24, 2010 HBC entered into an agreemitht GE Capital Canada Finance Inc. and certairerotiredit
lenders. The agreement provided for a $450.0 miliesm loan (the “Old HBC Term Loan”), of which mifas outstanding at
February 2, 2013. The Old HBC Term Loan bore ggeat an amount based on a Three Month Bankerpance rate,
which was to be no less than 1.5%, plus an integestad. The Old HBC Term Loan was available faregal corporate
purposes and was to mature on November 23, 20bfcurently, with the closing of the Offering on Wanber 26, 2012,
the Old HBC Term Loan was repaid. In connectiothwhe repayment, $2.7 million of deferred finamcoost were written
off (note 6).

NOTE 15. PROVISIONS
Year ended February 1, 2014
Severance, Store
Self Restructuring Closing
(millions of Canadian dollars) Insurance & HR Legal ARO'’s Costs Other Total
Balance at beginning of year ...............coe.... 33.8 50.8 13.5 — — 98.1
Additional provisions recognized....................... 30.1 53.2 0.8 1.4 — 85.5
Assumed through business combination........... 25.5 3.7 — 16.4 5.2 50.8
UIIZEA .o (31.3) (40.5) — (0.3) — (72.1)
Released — (5.3) — (0.1) — (5.4)
Unwinding/change in discount rate................... — — 0.1 — — 0.1
Net foreign currency exchange ............ccccccee.... 3.4 1.8 15 1.2 0.4 8.3
Balance atend of year..........ccccceeeeeeiiiiiiicceeenn 61.5 63.7 15.9 18.6 5.6 165.3
NON-CUITENT ..o — — 15.9 — — 15.9
CUIMENT ... e 61.5 63.7 — 18.6 5.6 149.4
61.5 63.7 15.9 18.6 5.6 165.3
Year ended February 2, 2013
Severance,
Restructuring
& HR Legal
Self (restated — see
(millions of Canadian dollars) Insurance note 2(z)) ARO'’s Other Total
Balance at beginning of year ...............commeveverennnn. 34.1 52.4 12.3 1.8 100.6
Additional provisions recognized ............commeeeeeeomnn 28.0 58.7 0.8 — 87.5
ULIIZEA .o (28.3) (15.0) — — (43.3)
Released...........ccoooiiiiiiiiii i — (4.3) — — (4.3)
Unwinding/change in discount rate ...........oc......... — — 0.4 — 0.4
Transfer to discontinued operations.........ccccceeeiiiiiee — (41.0) — (1.8) (42.8)
Balance at end of year........ccccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiccc e, 33.8 50.8 135 — 98.1
NON-CUIMTENE.....coiiiiiiieee i e e — — 135 — 135
CUIMENT ..t 33.8 50.8 — — 84.6
33.8 50.8 135 — 98.1
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Self insurance

The Company purchases third party insurance famaobile, worker's compensation (U.S. only) and gehkability claims
that exceed a certain dollar level. The Compamgsponsible for the payment of claims under thesared limits. The self-
insurance provision is based on claims filed anéstimate of claims incurred but not yet reportedurance claims will be
settled on a case by case basis over a period whiclexceed seven years. The amounts that the @yt ultimately
disburse could differ materially from the accruedoaints.

Severance, Restructuring & HR Legal

Severance and restructuring relates to the Companitiatives to lower operating costs and imprgwefitability. The
initiatives are associated with the closure of digcount store business; however, the related elaircurred cannot be
directly attributed to discontinued operations. stRecturing charges relating directly to the clesof Zellers stores are
reported within discontinued operations.

During fiscal 2013 these initiatives included aliggament of the logistics network for which a chamf $5.0 million (2012:
$38.4 million) was incurred primarily related taethonsolidation of excess capacity at certain lonat Severance charges
of $13.3 million (2012: $10.6 million) were incudefor changes to senior leadership, managementstesard other
supporting employees as the Company continuedéarsiine its organizational and management strastas a result of the
integration of its department store operations #mel wind-down of Zellers. In connection with thecquisition, the
Company incurred $28.8 million (2012: nil) of semece and related expenses. In addition a char§8.@fmillion (2012:
$6.2 million) was incurred related to the relocatif the information technology support functioAs at February 1, 2014,
$57.6 million (February 2, 2013: $45.9 million) raims accrued.

The Human Resources (“HR”) legal component of tlevigion relates to compensation claims made byeotrand former
employees. During fiscal 2013 the Company recomethiarge of $2.4 million (2012: $3.5 million). Coemsation claims
will be settled on a case by case basis over atenciinate period. The balance of the provisionaieing as at February 1,
2014 was $6.1 million (February 2, 2013: $4.9 roii)i.

Asset retirement obligations (“ARO’s")

The Company has certain operating leases thatreeguio remove leasehold improvements and reptaceemove other
structures at the end of the lease term. The Compéso has obligations to dispose of potentiallgadrdous materials
(principally, asbestos) in accordance with relevagislation. The estimate is based on the datexpfry of the lease or,
where relevant, the mandatory timelines of releVegislation.

Store closing costs

The Company continuously evaluates its real egiat¢folio and closes underproductive stores in ribemal course of
business as leases expire or as other circumstdiatate. Store closing costs include lease terticindees, asset disposals
and other closure activities.

NOTE 16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company conducts a substantial part of itsaijmers from leased stores in shopping and powedregrand also leases
warehouse facilities, administrative facilities aglipment.

Many of the Company’s store leases require equalithhp rent payments over the lease term. Howevemearous store
lease agreements include rent holidays, rent esmalalauses and/or contingent rent provisions tleafuire additional
payments based on a percentage of sales in extepedfied levels. Rent for renewal periods of @mpany’s leases
varies.

Rental expense related to operating leases ch&wgeatnings in fiscal 2013 was $169.2 million (20$214.5 million).
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Minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leses

The future minimum payments under non-cancelabéaimg leases are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:

2014 256.8
2015 243.8
2016 223.6
2017 194.0
2018 167.2
Thereafter 1,428.8
Total minimum lease payments 2,514.2

Of the total minimum lease payments, $56.3 millietate to Zellers leases that were not assignddatget (note 28). For
those leases which have been assigned to Targefoanghich the Company remains the lessee on thstandease
agreement, HBC has guaranteed the commitment bgeetnaining term of the lease (note 25).

NOTE 17. PENSIONS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Aggregate information about the Company’s Canadi@®DN") and U.S. pension and benefit plans is pnésd below. The
U.S. pension plans are sponsored by Saks for withite are no future benefit accruals for all remmgjrparticipants. Both

L&T and Saks sponsor defined contribution plans1(kD retirement savings plans) which are discussethe Defined
Contribution Pension Plans section below.

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets

2013 2012

CDN CDN u.s. CDN CDN

Pension Benefit Pension Pension Benefit

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
Funded Status ............ccooouiiiiiiii oo e 72.2 (35.4) (30.6) 38.3 (36.5)
LesSS: CUrreNt POILION .....o.uvveeieeeiiiiiecccee e et — 3.5 1.4 — 3.4
72.2 (31.9) (29.2) — (33.1)
Other long-term employee benefits liability ..cooeevvvveeiiiiiiii. — (34.8) — — (37.2)
Pension and employee benefits asset (liability).................. 72.2 (66.7) (29.2) 38.3 (70.3)

The current portion of the pension and employeesfiisriability is included in other payables antteued liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Employer contributions to defined benefit pensitamp in fiscal 2014 will approximate $2.0 million.
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Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

2012
2013 (restated — see note 2(z))
CDN CDN u.s. CDN CDN

Pension Benefit Pension Pension Benefit
(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
Fair value at beginning of year ..........cccooeeeiiiinie, 1,240.0 — —  1,267.7 —
Acquired through business combination......ccccccecoooivvieeee.. — — 128.6 — —
Return on plan assets (excluding iNterest) . ....veeeeensiem 67.3 — 0.6 16.5 —
INtEreSt INCOME.....ciiiiiiiiiiiie et e 84.7 — 1.2 74.7 —
Employer contributionS...........c.veviviiiieeeec e 0.6 3.5 0.3 0.4 3.6
Employee contributions ..........oocuvviiiiieemen e, 10.7 — — 16.2 —
Administration COStS ..o 2.7) — (0.5) (2.8) —
Benefits paid ..........ccooviiiiiiii e (187.3) (3.5) (4.0) (132.7) (3.6)
Net foreign currency exchange ............coceeeeviiiiiiiiieeeeennn, — — 8.9 — —
Fair value at end of year...........oocuvveiieiiiiennie e 1,213.3 — 135.1 1,240.0 —
! Includes defined contribution plan assets of $5aillion (February 2, 2013: $568.3 million).
Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligation

2012
2013 (restated — see note 2(2))
CDN CDN u.s. CDN CDN

Pension Benefit Pension Pension Benefit
(millions of Canadian dollars) Plang Plans Plans Plang Plans
Balance, beginning of year ..........cccvvvicccceeeee i 1,201.7 36.t — 1,176.7 36.5
Assumed through business combination........cccccc.vvvvieiene.. — — 1578 — —
CUrrent SErviCe COSE ....cooeiieiiiiiiieeee e e 22.1 — — 28.1 0.1
PaSt SEIVICE COSE...ciiiiiiiiiiiiiei ittt e 25 — — (0.5) (0.7)
SetHEMENES....eiiiieeiiie e 0.9 — — 0.3 —
Employee contributions ...........ccuvveieiiimeeeeniieeee e 10.7 — — 16.2 —
INtEreSt EXPENSE ...ttt 83.5 1.4 1.5 71.2 1.6
Benefits Paid .......ccovovviiiiieie e (187.3) (3.5 (4.0) (132.7) (3.6)
Change in demographic assumptions..........ccccoevvvvvmmeeeeeens, 25.0 2.1 0.1 — —
Change in financial assumptions ............cecceeevrivemeennere e (13.1) (0.7 (0.6) 42.1 21
Experience adjustments .................ooovime (4.9) (0.4 — 0.3 0.5
Net foreign currency exchange .............cccceeeeveeiiieeeeeennenn, — — 10.9 — —
Balance, end of year........ccuvvvvvviiiiiiec e 1,141.1 35.2 165.7 1,201.7 36.5

2 Includes defined contribution plan liabilities$612.1 million (February 2, 2013: $568.3 million)

Cumulative Actuarial (Losses) Gains

The cumulative actuarial (losses) gains recognizedher comprehensive loss for the Company’s ptarsas follows:

2012
2013 (restated — see note 2(2))
CDN CDN u.S. CDN CDN

Pension Benefit Pension Pension Benefit

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
Cumulative amount, beginning of year.......ccecceeovveveiennenen, (62.5) (6.0) — (36.6) 3.4
Net actuarial gains (I0SSes) recognized... oo veereeereenene. 60.3 (1.0) 1.1 (25.9) (2.6)
Cumulative amount, end of year.........cccccovvvvveeieiiiemiiieenenn, (2.2) (7.0) 1.1 (62.5) (6.0)
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Pension and Benefit Plan Expense

Fiscal 2013 and 2012 pension and benefit plan esgpEncomprised of the following:

2012
2013 (restated — see note 2(z2))
CDN CDN u.s. CDN CDN
Pension Benefit Pension Pension Benefit
(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
CUrrent SErVICe COSE ....ooeiiii it eeeeee e e 22.1 — — 28.1 0.1
PaSt SEIVICE COSE...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it ece et 25 — — (0.5) (0.7)
SEtHEMENES. ...t 0.9 — — 0.3 —
AdMINISTration COSES ...coiiiiiiiiiiiie it 2.7 — 0.5 2.8 —
Net expense (income) recognized in selling, genesaid
administrative eXPenSesS......ccuvueieeaeeiei i, 28.2 — 05 307 (0.6)
Interest income on plan assets ............ceccecevvieeniieeee e, (84.7) — (1.2) (74.7) -
Interest expense on plan obligations.......cceeeecevvvvviicnvvvvennn. 835 1.4 1.5 71.2 1.6
Net (income) expense recognized in finance costs.............. (1.2) 1.4 0.3 (3.5) 1.6
Net expense recognized iNn NEt0SS........cccoeevvviiiiiiiieeme s 27.0 1.4 0.8 27.2 1.0
Changes in demographic assumptions........cccccceceeeevvveeeeeeee. 250 2.1 01 — —
Changes in financial assumptions...........ccccceeeiiiiievveeeeeeeen. (13.1) (0.7) (0.6) 42.1 2.1
Experience adjuStments ...........eeeeveiiiieeeeeeeeie e (4.9) (0.4) — 0.3 0.5
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)............... (67.3) — (0.6) (16.5) —
Net (income) expense recognized in other comprehéns
INCOIME....iiiiiiie e (60.3) 1.0 (1.1) 25.9 2.6
Net (income) expense recognized in comprehensiveame.... (33.3) 2.4 (0.3) 53.1 3.6

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Included in CAD pensions plan current service edistve, HBC recognized a $14.5 million (2012: $28ilion) expense in
fiscal 2013 of which, $8.5 million (2012: $12.4 hah) relates to continuing operations. The expermgresents the
contributions made in connection with the definedtdbution plans.

In fiscal 2013, Saks and L&T contributed $3.9 moifli(2012: $1.6 million) to their U.S. defined cabtition plans.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

During fiscal 2013, the Company recognized a $5.iom (2012: $3.2 million) expense in selling, geal and
administrative expenses related to its other l@ngitemployee benefits.

Actuarial Assumptions

HBC and its non-executive employees contributegua amounts to HBC's defined contribution planse Tefined benefit
plans are funded by employee contributions, asreepéage of salary, and by HBC to support the aetubased pension
benefits. The defined benefit plans provide besdfitsed on members’ earnings and service.

The Company’s pension and benefits obligation axukrse are dependent on the assumptions usedculatalg these

amounts. These assumptions include discount @k of compensation increase and overall Canadialthhcare cost trend
rate.
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2013 2012

CDN CDN
CDN CDN Other u.s. CDN CDN Other
Pension  Benefit longterm Pension Pension  Benefit long term
Plans Plans benefits Plans Plans Plans benefits
Defined benefit obligations, end of the fiscal year
DIiSCOUNt rate .....c.evvvveeiiiiiiiiie e vccmemeee e 4.40% 4.20% 3.60% 3.80% 4.25% 4.00% 3.50%
Rate of compensation increase.............cccceee.... 3.00% 3.50% N/A N/A  3.25% 3.50% N/A
Net benefit expense for the fiscal year
DISCOUNt FALE ...veeeiiieiiiiiieiee e, 4.25% 4.00% 3.50% 3.80% 4.90% 4.70% 4.00%
Rate of compensation increase.............ccceee.... 3.25% 3.50% N/A N/A 3.25% 3.50% N/A
Health care trend rate:
Defined benefit obligations, end of the fiscal year
Immediate .........oeveiiiiiiie e, N/A 6.04% 6.04% N/A N/A 6.14% 6.14%
UIIMALE ... N/A 450% 4.50% N/A N/A 450% 4.50%
Net benefit expense for the fiscal year.............
Immediate .........oeveiiiiiiie e, N/A 6.14% 6.14% N/A N/A 6.48% 6.48%
UIIMALE ... N/A 450% 4.50% N/A N/A 450% 4.50%
Life expectancy:
Life expectancy from age 65............ccoooreeeeee,
MalE .o 86.1 86.1 N/A 83.8 84.8 84.8 N/A
Female ... 88.3 88.3 N/A 85.6 87.2 87.2 N/A
Defined Benefit Obligation by Participant Status
2013 2012
CDN CDN
CDN CDN Other u.s. CDN CDN Other
Pension Benefit longterm  Pension  Pension Benefit  long term
Plans’ Plans benefits Plans Plans’ Plans benefits
Active MEMDErS ......cooviiiiiieiiiiimce e 188.7 1.3 493 50.5 208.5 35 52.9
Vested deferred members .......ccoooeeeieiiicccemenee. 50.8 — — 54.6 42.9 — —
RELINEES ..ot 389.5 34.1 — 60.6 382.0 33.0 —
TOtAl L. 629.0 354 493 165.7 633.4 36.5 52.9

% Excludes plan liabilities of $512.1 million (Felary 2, 2013: $568.3 million) for defined contrilom plan participants.

Assets by Class and Level

Supplemental information regarding the assets @fQbmpany’s pension plans by class and level aogaptd the fair value
hierarchy (see note 18) is presented below:

2013

(millions of Canadian dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CDN Pension Plans

Short-term and Cash ........ooooiiiii e 55.6 13.0 — 68.6

Canadian EQUILIES ........uvieieeeiiiete ettt e e e st enee e e e sbnr e e e e e aaes 56.2 — — 56.2

Foreign equities 67.0 — — 67.0

Real estate @QUILIES ........cooiiiiiiiii e — — 22.3 22.3

Private equity funds and Other ... s — — 133.4 133.4

POOIEA FUNAS ... — 865.8 — 865.8

178.8 878.8 155.7 1,213.3
U.S. Pension Plans
22070 ] 1Yo I (1] 0T S — 135.1 — 135.1
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Sensitivity analysis

The following tables provide a sensitivity analysfschanges in the health care trend rate, disc@iet rate of compensation
and life expectancy assumptions. Specifically, ithpacts of the sensitivity analysis are shownreseiases (decreases) to
defined benefit obligations. The sensitivity asidyis hypothetical and should be used with cauthatual experience may
result in changes in a number of key assumptiomsiigkneously. Changes in one factor may resulthgnges in another,
which could amplify or reduce the impact of suchuemptions.

2013 2012
CDN CDN CDN us. CDN CDN CDN
Pension Benefit Other Long- Pension Pension Benefit Other Long-

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans term Plans Plans Plans Plans term Plans
Health care trend rate

Effect of 1% increase 2.9 0.5 N/A N/A 3.3 0.6

Effect of 1% decrease (2.6) (0.4) N/A N/A (2.8) (0.5)

2013
CDN CDN CDN us.
Pension Benefit Other Long- Pension

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans term Plans Plans
Discount rate

Effect of 1% increase............. (65.4) (3.0) (2.7) (8.8)

Effect of 1% decrease............ 79.8 3.6 3.0 10.2
Rate of compensation/inflation

Effect of 1% increase.............. 8.1 N/A N/A N/A

Effect of 1% decrease............ (7.5) N/A N/A N/A
Life expectancy

Effect of 1 year increase......... 16.4 2.2 N/A 3.2

Effect of 1 year decrease........ (16.4) (2.1) N/A (3.1)
Historical Information
The history of the Company’s pension plans is preskbelow:
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

CDN u.S.

Fair value of plan assets.........ccccccviceeeeaceeennn, 1,213.3 135.1 1,240.0 1,267.7 1,340.1 1,307.3

Present value of defined benefit obligatians.... 1,141.1

Surplus in the plans.....................

165.7 1,201.7

1,176.7 11614 1,139.7

72.2

(30.6) 38.3

91.0 178.7 167.6

Supplementary executive retirement plan

The Company guarantees an annual pension to cestairutives in the supplementary executive retirgrpéan (“SERP”)

which is included in the CDN Pension Plans defitmmhefit obligation presented earlier. The Compargusiranteed
obligation pursuant to the SERP for service up twédnber 10, 2005 is secured by a trust fund foraoemembers. Total
assets of the trust fund at February 1, 2014 wége7dmillion (February 2, 2013: $65.7 million). Thbligation in respect of
service after November 10, 2005 is not secured.
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides a comparison of cargyiand fair values of financial instruments as elbrbary 1, 2014 and
February 2, 2013:

2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(millions of Canadian dollars) Value Value Value Value
Classified as fair value through profit or loss
Embedded foreign currency derivaties..............cccoveveveeievevieeecnae, (0.6) (0.6) (0.2) (0.1)
WAITANTE ...ttt (23.5)  (23.5) — —
Classified as loans and receivables
CaASH e 19.2 19.2 43.0 43.0
RESHICIEA CASN ....cviiiiiiii i 1.6 1.6 5.3 5.3
Trade and other receivabf®s.............coocivieoeeeee e 139.5 139.5 85.1 85.1
Classified as held to maturity
Short-term deposit..........cccooviviiieeeceeeeee e 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7
Financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedge
Forward foreign currency contral®s..............cccocveveveveecereeeeeece, 5.0 5.0 0.9 0.9
INEErESt FAtE SWAS ....c.cveevveveeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeses et e st e e s 1.3 1.3 (0.3) (0.3)
Classified as other liability
Trade PayabléB............ccoovovovieeeee e (589.3) (589.3) (442.0) (442.0)
Other payables and accrued liabilifes................ccccooooiiiiicicee, (465.2) (465.2) (248.6) (248.6)
HBC Revolving Credit FaCility .............coooeemiiiii (87.6) (87.6) — —
U.S. Revolving Credit FaCility..............c. i (417.7) (417.7) — —
Lord & Taylor Revolving Credit Facility — — (137.8) (137.8)
Senior Term Loan B ... (2,227.6) (2,258.3) — —
JUNIOF TEIM LOAN ...viiiiiiiie it ettt (334.1) (345.0) — —
YOrkdale MOIGAGE .......vvveeireieiiiree e e (49.4) (49.4) — —
Lord & Taylor MOMAGE ....c.coiuvereieeeiitmm et e e e eeiitteee e et e e e nnneeeeeee s (278.5) (278.5) (249.3) (249.3)
HBC Term Loan .......ccccvvvvvveeeeeeereeses e — — (250.0) (250.0)
Lord & Taylor Term Loan — — (204.7) (208.3)
Other MOIGAGES . .. eeiieiiiiiiiiee ettt e sttt e e e e s sbbaeeeeesssnbeeeeeeennes (9.8) (9.8) (11.7) (11.7)
1) Included in financial liabilities — current
2) Included in financial liabilities — non-current
3) Included in financial assets — current
(4) $5.2 million included in financial assets — mmt (2012: $1.4 milion) and $0.2 million included financial liabilities — current
(2012: $0.5 million)
(5) Included in financial assets — current (20&Zluded in financial liabilities — current)
(6) Includes assetsl/liabilities of discontinuedrapiens (note 28)

The fair value of the HBC Revolving Credit Faciity.S. Revolving Credit Facility, Lord & Taylor Relving Credit
Facility, Senior Term Loan B, Junior Term Loan, HB€rm Loan, HBC Term Loan, Yorkdale Mortgage, Lé&draylor
Mortgage and Lord & Taylor Term Loan are valuechgsa discounted cash flow model, taking into coasition the fixed
interest rate spread included in the related debitpared to fixed interest rate spreads on simiéit dvailable in the market
at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of foreign currency options, instreate swaps, forward foreign currency contraétpity Commitment
Forwards and warrants reflect the estimated amabhet€ompany would receive or pay if it were tdleehe contracts at
the reporting date, and are determined using vialua¢chniques based on observable market inpat d&ie fair values of
embedded foreign currency derivatives reflect thineted amounts the Company would receive or pagettle forward
foreign exchange contracts with similar terms usialyation techniques using observable market idptd.

The following table summarizes the change in failue of financial instruments designated as faluevahrough profit or
loss that has been recognized in net loss for ¢ae: y
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(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Embedded foreign CUrrenCY AEIVALIVES ... .ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — 0.1
MVBITAINTS ...ttt oo oo oo oot ettt ettt bbb a e oo oo e e e et e et e e eeeeetebb o e e e e e e e eeeeeeaebbabaa e e e e e aaaaaaaas 0.1 —
Equity COMMITMENT FOIWAITS..........uiiiiie ettt e et e e et e e e e e 153.2 —
Fair value movement of embedded AErVALIVE wummuee.vviriiieiieiiciee e e e e e — (3.5)
153.3 (3.4)

The fair value of financial instruments are classifand measured according to the following falugaierarchy:

* Level 1: fair value measurement using quoted prioeadjusted) in active markets for identical assetiabilities;

» Level 2: fair value measurement using inputs othan quoted prices included within Level 1 thateither directly or

indirectly observable; and

« Level 3: fair value measurement using unobserviaplats in which little or no market activity existberefore,
requiring an entity to develop its own assumptiabsut the assumptions that market participants dvosé in pricing.

All financial instruments measured at fair value &alued using inputs other than quoted pricesdhaibservable for the

asset or liability and are therefore categorizetea®l 2 according to the fair value hierarchy.

Fair values of Level 2 financial instruments ardéedmined using valuation models which require tee af inputs. Those
inputs are based on external, readily observabid&enhanputs, including factors such as interest geld curves, currency
rates and price and rate volatilities as applicablterest rate derivatives are valued using aodisted cash flow model

based on market interest rate curves at the pendddate. The forward foreign currency contracts@nbedded derivatives

are valued based on the difference between comtitet and spot rates at the period-end date,ised to reflect the time-

value of money. The foreign currency options andrist rate swaps are valued based on the diffefegtoveen the exercise
rate and the spot rate, volatility of exchangegated market interest rates at the period-end Wéderants are valued using

the Black Scholes options pricing model utilizimgputs including maturity, dividend yield, sharecgrand volatility.

Capital management

The Company includes the following items in itsidigion of capital:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Short-term 10aNnS and DOITOWINGS ........c.iicrmeeee ettt ser e e e st e e e st e e e e e s aanes 531.6 132.1
Long-term 10aNnS and DOITOWINGS ...........utieecmmteeee e e e sttt e e sttt e e st e e e s st e e e e e s aebb e e e e s annnneeeas 2,923.3 718.5
SNAIE CAPITAL ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e e e bt b b ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnane 1,420.0 246.1
1070 ] a1 1] o101 (=10 IET U1 o] [V 1< RPPRPPP 43.1 325
RELAINEA BAIMINGS.....ceiiiiieiie it ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e aea e et e e e et e e e aaaaaaaaaaeaaaaannnnennbnneeeneeees 495.9 796.9
54139 1,926.1

The Company’s objectives when managing capitat@reaintain ample liquidity to support the operati®mf the Company,

prudently utilize long-term debt to finance the Gramy’s long-term assets and investments and pradeguate returns to

its shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure, and snaéfistments to it, in light of changes to ecomoaginditions and its
strategic objectives. In order to maintain or adjphe capital structure, the Company may adjustatmeunt of dividends

paid to shareholders, return capital to sharehs]desue new equity interests or sell assets taceedebt.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to credit, liquidity aratkat risk from its use of financial instrumentsieTfollowing is a

description of those risks and how the exposuresreamaged:
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0] Credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises iébtdr or counterparty to a financial instrumenisfé&d meet its obligations,
and arises principally from short-term depositsereables, and derivative instruments that aregaia position. Credit risk
is mitigated by various techniques including sefertounterparties based on acceptable creditggtmd minimizing the
concentration of positions with individual counterfles. There is no concentration of accounts vatée balances. The
Company does not consider its exposure to cregkitta be material.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will nbe able to meet its financial obligations as tfelydue. The Company
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoringfugal and projected cash flows, taking into accabatseasonality of the
Company’s working capital needs, sales and earnimge HBC Revolving Credit Facility, the U.S. Rewioly Credit
Facility and the bank overdraft facilities are useanaintain liquidity.

Undiscounted contractual maturities (including iatt) of the Company’s financial liabilities arefaliows:

Trade and Loans and
(millions of Canadian dollars) other payables Derivatives borrowings Total
Fiscal year:
2004 . 1,054.5 13 704.7 1,760.5
- - 185.0 185.0
- - 175.6 175.6
- - 439.9 439.9
- 23.5 153.0 176.5
- - 3,152.4 3,152.4
1,054.5 24.8 4,810.6 5,889.9

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility matures June 2817 and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility matuhsvember 4,
2018. These amounts have been reflected as duedal R014 in the table above to be consistent pidsentation on the
consolidated balance sheets.

(iii) Market risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency riskiatetest rate risk:
(a) Foreign currency risk

HBC is a Canadian dollar functional currency entityat purchases a significant amount of inventany ifs Canadian
operations in U.S. dollars. HBC enters into forwéwteign exchange contracts and foreign currendjoog to reduce the
foreign exchange risk with respect to these U.Haddenominated purchases. The forward foreigrharge contracts are
designated and accounted for as a cash flow heddeSodollar purchases.

In accordance with the Company’s risk managemelitypdiBC may hedge up to 100% of all foreign cmeg transactions
and economic exposures that are recognized on dheotidated balance sheet, or deemed as firm caonenis (e.qg.

purchase orders that have been issued for goodsemites in foreign currency). It may further hedgp to 70% of

forecasted transactions (anticipated transactionsvhich there are no firm commitments). HBC's be$. dollar exposure
is determined based on entities with the Canaddiardas their functional currency. HBC'’s net Uddllar exposure as at
February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 excludingntastment in L&T Acquisition is as follows:
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U.S. Dollar Exposure (millions of U.S. dollars) 2013 2012

Trade PAYADIES ... et e e s (56.4) (68.6)
HBC Revolving Credit FACIlItY ............oooiiean e (5.0 —
Senior TErM LOAN B ... (2,000.0) —
TN g o] g =T 1 0 - L o [OOSR T RPN (300.0) —
OULSTANING PUICNASE OFUEIS .......ceiee oo e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e ettt et e e e s saabe e e e e s e sntbaeeaeeeasnbbeeeeeeannenees (20.1) (35.4)
Forward foreign eXChange CONTIACES .........ceariiaiiiiiite et e e e e e e aaaaeeeas 161.0 188.0
U.S. dollar denominated inter-company reCeivableS ..........ccuviviiiiiiiii e 1,502.7 —
JLI0] 2= LI =Dd 0 ] U PSSR (717.8) 84.0

The settlement dates of the forward foreign curyerantracts range from February 2014 to August 281d the weighted
average foreign exchange rate is $1.080.

For fiscal 2013 HBC recorded a loss of $2.0 milli@12: gain of $2.1 million) relating to the tréatfon or settlement of
foreign currency denominated monetary items.

The estimated gains and losses on derivatives migsig as cash flow hedges expected to be rectbsifiearnings within
the next 12 months is a net gain of $1.8 million.

The Company’s net investment in L&T Acquisition, @ge functional currency is U.S. dollars, preserfisraign exchange
risk to HBC, whose functional currency is Canadiatiars. HBC is using a net investment hedge tagati¢ this risk. HBC
has designated US $800.0 million of the Term LoaasBa hedge of the first US $800.0 million of neseds of L&T

Acquisition. Foreign currency translation of thet marnings of L&T Acquisition will impact consodited net earnings.
Foreign currency translation of HBC’s investmenL&T Acquisition will impact other comprehensivecimme (loss).

On an annualized basis, after considering the Cogipdnedge of its exposure to foreign currency,riskstrengthening of
the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar by 1%ebruary 1, 2014 would have increased net loskll million for fiscal
2013 (2012: $2.0 million).

(b) Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from stenrs and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issuedvatable rates
expose the Company to cash flow interest rate Baking fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company’s vagataite borrowings
were denominated in the U.S. dollar and the Camadiiiar.

Cash flow interest rate risk is mitigated by the o§interest rate swaps.
U.S dollar borrowings

The Senior Term Loan B, Junior Term Loan, U.S. Rang Credit Facility and the Lord & Taylor Mortgagall have a
variable component to interest based on LIBOR. &lieexposure to interest rate cash flow risk ifakde rates rise.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interatt swap arrangements, the effect of which isxtdhie interest rate
related to the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at 3.85%. eTihterest rate swap is designated as a cash #olgeh The net interest
rate received under this arrangement is includeithance costs. The arrangements have an effedtite of September 7,
2012 and a maturity date of September 10, 2017.

During fiscal 2012 three interest rate caps whieheadesignated as cash flow hedges of interestisktenatured. L&T had
entered into interest rate caps for the period agni5, 2009, through the original maturity datelahuary 31, 2011, with a
financial institution at a LIBOR rate of 2%. L&T eeived payment from the financial institution whie rate of LIBOR
exceeded 2% on the aggregate notional amount &f ®dlion. The net interest received under thesaragyements was
included in finance costs. These renegotiated genaents had an effective date of October 15, 2808,a maturity date of
January 31, 2011.

In September 2010, L&T extended the maturity obthnterest rate caps to June 2012. The interestaps were effective
from September 2010 to June 2012. L&T received magrfrom the financial institution when the rateLdBOR exceeded
2% for the period from September 2010 to Januatyl26r 1.5% for the period from January 2011 to JR@&2 on the
aggregate notional amount of $0.8 million. As tiB@QR rate had been below the caps, no net inteeesived under these
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arrangements is included as an offset to finansésco

An increase of 100 basis points in LIBOR over tlastpyear would have increased net loss for fis6aB2by $2.8 million
(2012: $1.0 million). This sensitivity analysis doeot include the impact that an increase of 1%BOR rates would have
on the fair value of the interest rate swaps.

Canadian dollar borrowings

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility and HBC Term Lodescribed in note 14 bear interest at a variadikelvased on CDOR
plus a fixed spread. HBC is exposed to interestcash flow risk as the variable rate rises.

On an annualized basis, an increase of 100 basissgn CDOR rates over the past year would haeeeesed net loss for
fiscal year 2013 by $2.5 million (2012: $5.1 mitijo

(c) Other risks

On July 29, 2013, to finance a portion of the cdegition to acquire Saks, the Company receivedtiE@ammitments from
HSILP and WF Fund. The Equity Commitments from HSland WF Fund required the Company to issue itancon
shares (see note 20) at a future date at $17.08hpee (subject to adjustment in certain limitedwinstances). Due to the
variability of the share issue price and certalmeotfeatures of the investment agreements with R2hd WF Fund, Equity
Commitment Forwards were recognized and accoumteds derivative financial instruments. On theedatthe execution
of the definitive merger agreement with Saks (“Mmrggreement”), the Equity Commitment Forwards weegermined to
be in an asset position. During fiscal 2013, thenfany recognized an expense of $153.2 million epréng the mark to
market adjustments from the date of the executfidheMerger Agreement to November 4, 2013, the déthe closing of
the Acquisition. The fair values were determinathg a forward pricing model utilizing the assurops outlined below.
Upon closing of the Acquisition and at the end bé tcommitment period, the Company derecognized Ebaity
Commitment Forwards and reclassified the relatearftial liability of $129.9 million to share capi{aote 20).

Certain features of the warrants issued in conoeatiith the Acquisition (note 4) result in the wats being presented as
derivative financial liabilities recorded at faialue in the consolidated balance sheet.

During fiscal 2013 in relation to the 1.5 millionawants issued to HSILP concurrently with the exiecuof the Merger
Agreement (“Merger Agreement Warrants”), the Conypeatognized finance related costs of $4.9 milliepresenting the
mark to market adjustments from the date of exeoutif the Merger Agreement to February 1, 2014.aA&ebruary 1,
2014, the fair value of the Merger Agreement Wamamas $4.9 million. The fair values were determinsing the Black-
Scholes options pricing model using the assumpiarniéned below.

In relation to the 5.25 million warrants issuedHSILP and WF Fund on November 4, 2013 upon closintye Acquisition

(“Acquisition Warrants”), the Company recognizedafince related income of $4.8 million representimg mark to market
adjustments from the date of execution of the MeAgreement to February 1, 2014. As at Februar3014, the fair value
of the Acquisition Warrants was $18.6 million. Tfeer values were determined using the Black-Scholgtions pricing
model using the assumptions outlined below.

The Company will continue to record mark to mar@ins and losses on the warrants until the eafiéhe date of exercise
or expiry.

The assumptions related to the valuation of theamas issued and the Equity Commitment Forwardgaarfellows:

Share PriCe - JUIY 26, 2013 .........couuutmmmn e e e eeutteeeeeeseistaaeeeessasaabee e e e s eaaaaeeeeeaasataeeeeesaasstaeeeeesanssbreeeesennnens $16.49
Share price — FeDrUary 1, 2014 ...ttt e e e et e e e e et e e e et ra e e e e, $19.82
Expected warrant volatility — Merger Agreement VAZIES .............couiiiiiiiaaaiariia i meemee e eemm e 29.4%
Expected warrant volatility — ACQUISItION WaITANLS. ..........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaa et 29.8%
Expected Equity Commitment FOrwards VOIAtTY we ....oooeeieiiiiieeeeee e 63.6%
DAV To =T o BT (o U U PUU R TRTPORT 1.01%
Risk free interest rate 1.58%
Expected life — Merger Agreement WaAITANTS ....cceceuviiiiiiiiieee e ee s s eerr e e e e e e e e e e s e s s sessnnnnee e s 4.8 years
Expected life — ACQUISITION WAITANTS .......oommmererrrrrieeeirerrerreeeeeeessssssssssssasansreeerereeeeeeeeseessesimmnreeeseeeenns 5.0 years
Expected life — Equity Commitment FOrWardS ...........oooicciiiriiiiiiiiiiieeeree e e e e e eeeescm e up to Nov. 4, 2013
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NOTE 19. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

On November 26, 2012, concurrent with the IPO,Goenpany established share option plans for ceemiployees and its
Board of Directors and has reserved up to 10%ebtitstanding shares or 18,210,000 common sharésst@nce under the
plan. There were no cancellations or significantlification to the plans during fiscal 2013.

Option Plan

The Company grants options to certain employeetwhillow each participant to exercise their shgrgoas to either
subscribe for Common Shares or receive a cash payahéhe option of the Company. The cash payngeadlculated as the
difference between the market price of the Commioer&s as at the exercise date and the exercigegirtbe share option.
The exercise price of each option equals the wedjhterage of the share price for the five dayogepreceding the date of
grant. The Company uses the fair value method ¢owat for share options issued which is establigirethe date of grant
using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model.

Senior executive options vest 50% in each of thetfoand fifth year following the grant date. Thations have a ten year
term and will be forfeited immediately in the evangrantee is terminated for cause, and after-fireydays in the event of
a voluntary resignation or termination without cauShare options are subject to a pro-rata vestthgdule if the grantee is
terminated. Of the senior executive options grand&d6 have a performance condition and vest ontlgafshare price is at
least 50% higher than the offering price of the pany’s IPO for any twenty day period prior to theiey date.

Senior executive option transactions during fi&l3 and fiscal 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Weighted average Weighted average
Number of options exercise price Number of options exercise price

Outstanding at beginning of year........................ 6,090,500 $17.00 — —
Granted ..........oooiiiiii s 975,603 $17.89 6,126,000 $17.00
EXErCISEA .ooiiiiiieeiieiee e — — — —
Forfeited. ... (503,500) $17.00 (35,500) $17.00
EXPIred. ... — — — —
Outstanding at end of year.................ceeemceeeeennnn, 6,562,603 $17.13 6,090,500 $17.00

Share options exercisable at end of year........... — — — —

During fiscal 2013, the grant date fair value afise executive options granted was $4.8 million1(20$34.2 million).

The following table summarizes information abou finare options outstanding and exercisable asbau&ry 1, 2014:

Number of Weighted average Number Weighted

outstanding remaining Weighted average €xercisable at average
Range of exercise prices options contractual life exercise price Feb 1, 2014 exercise price
$17.00 to $17.47 5,989,652 8.83 $17.00 — —
$18.00 to $18.85 572,951 9.90 $18.48 — —
Total 6,562,603 8.92 $17.13 — —

The assumptions used to measure the fair valuerabisexecutive options granted during fiscal 2@h8 fiscal 2012 under
the Black-Scholes model at the grant date werelbsifs:

2013 2012
Expected dividend Yield. ..o 1.1% to 2.4% 2.204
Expected share price VOlatility.............cccommereeieieiiiiieiieiieeeeee 30.3% to 38.7% 40.6%
Risk-free interest rate.........cccvviiiiiiee e 1.4% to 1.6% 1.4%
Expected life of OPLONS .......cvvviiiiii e 6.5 6.5

Options issued to other management have a vestirigdpof three years and have a seven year termmneitperformance
condition. The options will be forfeited immediagtéh the event a grantee is terminated for cauaed,after forty-five days
in the event of a voluntary resignation or termimatvithout cause. Share options are subject tmagta vesting schedule if

47



the grantee is terminated.

Other management options transactions during 2642812 were as follows:

2013 2012
Weighted average Weighted average
Number of options exercise price Number of options exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year........................ 929,800 $17.00 — —
Granted ........cooeviiiiiiiee e 197,000 $17.17 967,400 $17.00
Forfeited. ... (157,200) $17.01 (37,600) $17.00
Outstanding at end of year................vceeemeeeeennnn, 969,600 $17.03 929,800 $17.00

Share options exercisable at end of year........... — — — —

During fiscal 2013, the grant date fair value ofr@agement options granted was $0.9 million (2012t $4llion).
The following table summarizes information abou finare options outstanding and exercisable asbau&ry 1, 2014:

Number of Weighted average Number Weighted

outstanding remaining Weighted average  exercisable at average
Range of exercise prices options contractual life exercise price Feb 1, 2014 exercise price
$17.00 to $17.47 969,600 5.94 $17.03 — —

The assumptions used to measure the fair valughefr asnanagement options granted during fiscal 2@ fiscal 2012
under the Black-Scholes model at the grant date werfollows:

2013 2012
Expected dividend yield....................... 1.1% to 2.4% 2204
Expected share price volatility.............cooeeveiiiiiiiiis 30.3% to 38.7% 42.3%
Risk-free interest rate..............ccooieeieiiiiiiicc 1.4% to 1.6% 1.3%

During fiscal 2013, related to all share optiohg €ompany recognized $7.0 million in compensatiquense (2012: $0.9
million).

Phantom Share Plan

The Company grants phantom shares to certain eegdoyDuring fiscal 2012, 231,950 phantom shares wnéire granted
with a grant date fair value of $3.9 million. Phamt share units have a vesting period of three yématswill be settled in
common shares of the Company or in cash at the @oywp option. During fiscal 2013, the Company igtaed

compensation expense of $0.7 million (2012: $0.lian). No new phantom share units were grantefistal 2013.

Restricted Share Units

The Company grants restricted share units (“RStésertain employees. During fiscal 2012, the Comypawarded 35,293
RSUs with a term of three years at a grant-datevidue of $17.00 per unit, which will be settleddommon shares of the
Company. The grant date fair value of the RSUs $8 million, which are all expected to vest. Dgrifiscal 2013 the

Company granted 115,980 RSUs under similar terrdscanditions as those granted concurrently withlB@. The grant-

date fair value of these RSUs was $2.0 million.

During fiscal 2013, the Company recognized $0.2ionilin compensation expense (2012: $0.1 million).
Performance Share Units

During fiscal 2012, the Company established a perémce share unit plan. During fiscal 2013, the @any granted
674,939 (2012: nil) performance share units (“PSUkth a fair value of $14.64 per unit. The faalve was determined
based on the Company’s share price at the dateeofiiant and adjusted to reflect that PSUs areentitled to dividends.
The PSUs vest three years from the date of grahieaénd of that calendar year and are forfeitedenfiately in the event a
grantee is terminated for cause, and after foktg-flays in the event of a voluntary resignatioteomination without cause,
subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the g terminated. The grant date fair value ofRB&Js is $9.9 million of
which $7.7 million is expected to vest. During 662013, related to the PSUs, the Company recodriéde9 million in
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compensation expense (2012: nil).

PSU transactions during fiscal 2013 were as follows

2013
Outstanding at DegiNNING OF YA ....... ...ttt a e et e e e e e e aaaaaaeaeaaaas —
ESTS =T [ P 674,939
o] 1= 1 (=0 PRSP UPPPR (14,777)
Outstanding at FEDIUAIY 1, 2004 ...... . ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e s e e e abb et et teeeeeaeeaaaaaaaaaaaaess 660,162
Weighted average contract life remaining at FElyr@aR014d ..............ccevvviiiiieieeeeee st eeeaeeaaaeeas 2.9 years

Deferred Share Units

The Company grants deferred share units (“DSUsHhémbers of the Board of Directors. During fisc@l3, the Company

granted 48,103 units (2012: 8,107) with a granedatr value of $0.8 million (2012: $0.1 millionYhe fair value was

determined based on the Company'’s share pricecatdte of grant. No Director will have the rightreceive any benefit

under the DSU plan until the participant ceasdseta Director. Compensation expense recorded éoyahr ended February
1, 2014 was $0.8 million (2012: $0.1 million).

Profits Interests

L&T B and HBTC maintain equity settled Profits Irgsts plans for certain senior executives of L& &fBC. These
Profits Interests represent the right to residuglity in L&T B or HBTC, in excess of levels speeffi in each grant
agreement, after satisfying the commitments taltparties, preferred investors and the return efdfiginal investment to
the common investors. L&T B and HBTC have the rightall certain vested grants upon terminatiorraployment.

Profit interests have not been granted since fi2€l9. The value of these profits interests grawits be charged to
compensation expense over the individual vestingpgeof each grant on a tranche basis. Compensatipense for fiscal
2013 was nil (2012: $0.5 million). As at February 2014 and February 2, 2013 there was nil of tarmlecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested profityésts.

Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIP)

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a longr-iacentive plan (LTIP) for certain senior exewas. Under this plan a
maximum of 100,000,000 incentive units may be grdntvhich entitle participants to receive cash payts or, at the sole
discretion of the Board, shares of the grantingtyemt lieu of cash. As at January 28, 2012, th@mpany ceased making
grants under this program.

Incentive units had up to a ten year term, vesteghjual installments over a five year service gkramd were paid out upon
a change of control event or an initial public offg, as defined in the LTIP. Each incentive unéswpaid out based on the
unit appreciation value, according to the termeaxth grant.

The unit appreciation value reflects the perforneaotthe equity value of the entity against a thsgpiity value established
at the grant date, according to the terms of thatgiThese grants were made at the HBC level amdtlaidual subsidiaries

and ultimate amounts payable are determined bgsen performance at either the HBC level or theviiatlial subsidiary to

which the grant relates.

Grants last awarded under this plan were issuddal 2010. Grants generally vested over a peobfive years. LTIP
grant activity, expressed as a percentage of taédaits available under the plan for fiscal 204 2s follows:

2012
Balance — heginniNg Of YA ...........iii i cceeceere ettt e e e e et e e et s e e s er e e e e et e e e e e e e e easasaa s s neantentennneeees s e ee 5.15%
LT T 1 EST= V1= T o (=T o [ PSPPSRI —
LT =T o £ 30 (0] 1 1= 1= PSR (0.99%)
LT T SR = T0 [=T=T 4o 1= o PR PPPPPRPRR (4.16%)

BalanCe — €N OF YBAI.......iii ittt ettt e et e e e aee e e e e e s s e s s s ar—e e e ee e e et eeteeeeeeeeeeeaesaaa i nnn———————aaaeees —

The value of these LTIP grants was charged to cosgi®n expense over the individual vesting pedbdach grant on a

tranche basis. Compensation expense for fiscal 2@k3nil (2012: $3.5 million). As of February 2,13) total unrecognized

compensation cost was nil related to non-vestedPLlawards. During fiscal 2012, the Company redeen#6i0,000 units or
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4.16% and issued 0.5 million common shares witlaia falue of $8.5 million. During fiscal 2013, t@ompany made
payments of $8.4 million (2012: $27.8 million).

The liability for future payments related to theedemptions at February 1, 2014 is nil (Februar3@,3: $8.4 million).

NOTE 20. SHARE CAPITAL

As at February 1, 2014 the authorized shares of lBSist of an unlimited number of common sharesb am unlimited
number of preferred shares issuable in seriesr Ryithe IPO, the authorized shares consisted afrdimited number of
class A supervoting preferred shares and an uémtimber of non-voting common shares.

Share Reorganization

On November 19, 2012, the Board of Directors appdawe following changes to the Company’s shar@adap

* Increase the authorized capital of the Compangregting an unlimited number of preferred shasssjable in
series, and an unlimited number of common shares;

* Re-designated the issued and outstanding 10.®@mitbmmon shares of the Company as 10.0 millios<a
common shares;

» Exchanged the issued and outstanding 0.01 millias<CA preferred shares into 0.01 million commoares;

»  After giving effect to the foregoing, splittingglCompany's common shares on a 10.469 to 1 basis; a

e Cancellation of the authorized and unissued Clapseferred shares and the newly re-designated Glassnmon
shares.

All references in the consolidated financial statats to number of shares, share prices, per shavards and share based
compensation plans have been adjusted retroactielthe split of common shares. The holders ohiemn shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from titmetime and are entitled to one vote per sharenegtings of the
shareholders.

Common Shares

On November 26, 2012 the Company completed thedHF@& common shares which consisted of a treastigying of 14.7

million common shares at $17.00 per share, forgmeceeds to the Company of $250.1 million netasdts of $20.0
million and an income tax benefit of $5.3 milliomdaa secondary offering by Hudson's Bay Company enuyourg,

S.A.R.L. (“HBCL” or the "Selling Shareholder") of@&million common shares for gross proceeds of ¥l idllion with no

proceeds going to the Company. In addition, HBGanted to the underwriters of the IPO an over-allait option,

pursuant to which the option was exercised by thaeuwriters on December 28, 2012, and 900,000 camshares were
sold at a price of $17.00 per share. The Compahpat receive any proceeds from the sale of thaesktional shares.

On November 26, 2012, 0.5 million common sharesvissued as redemption of 625,000 LTIP units (s¢e 19).

On July 29, 2013, to finance a portion of the cdesation to acquire Saks, the Company receivedyegammitments from
HSILP and WF Fund for the Canadian dollar equivalehup to U.S.$500.0 million and U.S.$250.0 mifli@f equity
funding, respectively. As consideration for HSK.RRquity commitment, concurrently with the exeouatiof the Merger
Agreement, the Company issued 1.5 million sharelmage warrants to HSILP, and subsequently issueatiditional 3.5
million warrants to HSILP upon the closing of theqdisition. In consideration for WF Fund’s commitme&pon closing of
the Acquisition the Company issued 1.75 million rsats to WF Fund (note 18).

On September 10, 2013 the Company issued 16,05&00€cription Receipts at a price of $17.15 persBubtion Receipt,
for aggregate gross proceeds of $275.3 millionpohebsts of $11.1 million. The subscription red¢eipere issued to finance
a portion of the consideration required to acq@aks. The net proceeds of the subscription receffitsing were held in
escrow until closing of the Acquisition. Accordiggbn November 4, 2013, the Company issued 16,0890;66hmon shares
in exchange for the Subscription Receipts.

On November 4, 2013, upon closing of the Acquigitithe Company issued 30,673,530 common sharesefqroceeds of
$521.3 million (U.S.$500.0 million) to HSILP and ,836,471 common shares for net proceeds of $260lform
(U.S.$250.0 million) to WF Fund.
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The change in common shares and class A prefenaésissued and outstanding is as follows:

Millions
Number of Canadian
of Shares Dollars
Common Shares
Issued and outstanding at January 28, 2012 ...cc.c...uiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee e 104,685,315 1.2
Conversion of Class A Preferred Shares.....eevveeeieiiiiieee e 104,685 1.0
Treasury offering (net of offering costs and incaiawees of $14.7 million)..............cccvvvveeee. 14,710,000 235.4
Redemption of 625,000 vested LTIP UNILS ....ccccaaeiiiiiiraiiieii e e e 500,000 8.5
Issued and outstanding at February 2, 2013.........uuiiiii e 120,000,000 246.1
Conversion of Subscription Receipts to common shéret of offering costs, transaction
costs and income taxes of $9.5 MIllION) ... .o revreiiieiiiiii e 16,050,000 265.8
Issuance of common shares to HSILP and WF Fundbfrtednsaction costs and income
taxes Of $3.8 MIlION) ....coiiiiiiii e 46,050,001 778.2
Fair value of Equity Commitment Forwards transfer@ equity (note 18)...........cccccvveeeenennn. — 129.9
Issued and outstanding at February 1, 2014.........uueiiiiiiiiiiiaiieeeee e 182,100,001 1,420.0

During the year ended February 1, 2014, the Compitjared and paid dividends to the holders ofciti@mon shares
totaling $42.9 million (2012: $101.1 million).

Preferred Shares

The preferred shares are issuable at any time rmmd fime to time in one or more series. The Boardiwectors are
authorized to fix before issue the number of, thesideration per share of, the designation of, taedorovisions attaching
to, the preferred shares of each series, whichin@yde voting rights and other provisions attaghio the preferred shares
or shares of the series. The preferred shareschf gies will rank on parity with the preferrecsds of every other series
and will be entitled to preference over the commabares and any other shares ranking junior to tefeped shares with
respect to payment of dividends and distributionanf/ property or assets in the event of the Conipaliyuidation,
dissolution or winding-up, whether voluntary or ahuntary.

In connection with the IPO, the 104,685 class Aesupting preferred shares were converted to comshanes. The class A
supervoting preferred shares each with a face valug#100 were entitled to a preference over the mom shares with
respect to priority in payment of dividends andlistribution of assets in the event of liquidatidigsolution or wind-up of
HBC whether voluntary or involuntary. The class Apservoting preferred shares entitled the holdematéixed, non-
cumulative dividend at the rate of 4% per annunsebaon their face value, as and when declared hdliers of class A
supervoting preferred shares were entitled to @te for each class A supervoting preferred shale he

Millions
Class A Preferred Shares Number of Canadian
of Shares Dollars
Issued and outstanding at January 28, 2012 .......uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaa e 104,685 1.0
CoNVersion t0 COMMON SNAIES ...........eees e eteetteereeereereaaaaeaeaeasessassasaenrereerrrrraraaeaees (104,685) (1.0)

Issued and outstanding at February 2, 2013 and Febary 1, 2014...........cccocvvvvvevveeeeeennn. — —

Warrants

As at February 1, 2014, the 6.75 million warrardsued to HSILP and WF Fund as consideration for Eqeity
Commitments are outstanding. The warrants arecisede into common shares of the Company at arciseeprice of
$17.00 per warrant which in certain circumstaneesubject to adjustment. The warrants expire oveNer 4, 2018.
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NOTE 21. LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Net loss per common share and weighted average oarshares outstanding are calculated as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars or shares except peshare amounts) 2013 2012

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operationsifasic earnings per share .................commmmeeen. (175.7) 27.8
Net loss from discontinued operations for basiiegs per share ..........ccccccvvvvviivicceece e, (82.4) (62.9)
Net loss for basic earnings Per SNAIe ... (258.1) (35.1)

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operationsifasic earnings per share (175.7) 27.8
IMPACE OF WAITANTS ...ttt e e e e e e e e e s e e e et e e e e e et e aaeesessaaa s nseaseanteaaneeereaeaeeeees o s (4.8) —
Net (loss) earnings from continuing operationsdituted earnings per share .............ccccceveeene... (180.5) 27.8
Net loss from discontinued operations for dilutadnéngs per share ..............coooiiiiceceeeen, (82.4) (62.9)
Net loss for diluted earnings PEI SNAIE....ccccccciiiiiiiiiii e (262.9) (35.1)
Weighted average common shares outStanding..........ccccuuuueuiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeee e, 135.2 107.5
Dilutive effeCt Of WAITANTS .........cooiiii e e e 0.2 —
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding.........cc.eveevviiiiiieee i 135.4 107.5
Basic net (loss) earnings per common share

CoNtiNUING OPEIALIONS ........cuiiiiiii e s $ (1.30) $ 0.26

[DI[STote] g1 1] a1 T=To lo] o 1=Ta= 11o] o F T PR PPPR (0.61) (0.59)

$ (1.91) $ (0.33)

Diluted net (loss) earnings per common share
CoNntiNUING OPEIALIONS........cuiiiiiic i e $(1.33) $ 0.26
[DI[STote] g1 1] g 18 T=To lo] o T=Tr= 11o] £ F TP PPPRI (0.61) (0.59)
$ (194 $ (0.33)

Excluded from the computation of diluted net (losgynings per common share were 1,170,550 (201 patentially
dilutive instruments, as they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The ultimate controlling party of the Company is T8.

Transactions between HBC and its subsidiaries (B@)e which are related parties, have been eliratha@in consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note. Details ofda&tions with other related parties are disclostavin

On May 6, 2011, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition ered into a two year lease with SP 35 L.P. (thentilerd”) for
approximately 31,000 sq. ft. in Shrewsbury, NJ. e Thase was amended on January 17, 2013 to inthude renewal
options. The first two renewal options are formerof two and three years, respectively at an droosa of U.S$0.4 million.
The third renewal option is for a term of five ygat an annual cost of U.S.$0.5 million. The frestewal option was
exercised. Amounts charged to the Company underehtal arrangement for fiscal 2013 were $0.3ionil(2012: $0.4
million). The Landlord is an affiliate of NationRealty & Development Corp. (“NRDC”). Richard Bakemd Robert Baker,
the principals of NRDC, are directors of the Compan

Prior to November 26, 2012, agreements existeddmwiBC and other related parties including HBTfieTNorth Retail
Investments Limited Partnership (“TNRI”), HBCL amdRDC, all of which are entities under common cohfar the
reimbursement of expenses and management feedNo@mber 26, 2012 these agreements were amendediaichese
entities are no longer entitled to management feesy have their expenses reimbursed. Amountsgeldato the Company
by HBTC, TNRI, and HBCL relating to the reimburserhef expenses were $1.4 million for Fiscal 20 nounts charged
to the Company by HBTC under a management agreemerg $1.5 million for fiscal 2012. Amounts chalge the
Company by NRDC under a property agreement wei® i8lion for fiscal 2012.
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In connection with the Target transaction (note 28)September 29, 2012, Zellers and L&T B enténtmla Fee Agreement
that provided for a fee of $8.0 million payableli®T B for advisory services. The fee was paid toL& on October 27,
2012.

During fiscal 2012, a director of the Company walKer an investment banking firm that was part lndé syndicate of
investment banks involved in the Company’s IPO. m@ussions of $0.4 million were paid in connectiofthwthis
transaction.

During the year ended February 1, 2014, the Compecsived $0.3 million from HBTC relating to thambursement of
expenses for services provided by HBC on their lheha

All of the above amounts have been recorded attbbange value of the transaction.
On February 25, 2014, the Company closed its ageaeno sell its downtown Toronto flagship retailngoex and the

Simpson's Tower to an affiliate of The Cadillacri#@iw Corporation Limited, an affiliate of HSILPgifa purchase price of
$650.0 million (note 29).

NOTE 23. COMPENSATION

The remuneration of key management personnelgoali2013 and 2012 is as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Sy To] i (=T 4 =T 4 =Y 1 OSSR 8.9 156
POSt-eMPIOYMENT DENETILS. ... .uiiiiii it et e e sttt e e e e s st e e e e e s anbbeeaeeesnneees 15 0.2
Other [0NG-termM DENETILS ... e s st e e s st e e e e e s atbeeeeeeeans 9.0 84
=TT F= T T I =T oY ] O ERER 0.2 0.1
Share based COMPENSALION ..........eiiii i ieeeeeee ettt e e et e e s s ab e e e e e s asbbe e e e e e s abbbeeeeeessnbbeeeeeenanes 44 3.6

24.0 27.9

The compensation noted in the above table form$ @athe total employee benefits expense, includiigcontinued
operations, recorded by the Company in fiscal 201ding $1,111.7 million (2012: $1,210.0 million).

NOTE 24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of February 1, 2014, there are a number of dagginst the Company where the likely outcometh uantifiable and
estimable in varying amounts and for which provisichave been made in these consolidated finan@génsents, as
appropriate. It is not possible to determine th@ambs that may ultimately be assessed against ¢ingp&ny with respect to
these claims but management believes that any amclunts would not have a material impact on thénless or financial
position of the Company.

NOTE 25. GUARANTEES

As part of normal operations, the Company regulaglyiews its real estate portfolio and store larai Based on the
reviews conducted in prior years, the Company hased certain store premises that it deemed toobestrategic. Where
these premises were leased, the Company assigniedises to other retail operators, but remaindidgaibd to the landlord
on those leases as the original tenant thereunegpitd the assignment. If the assignee were toutliefm the lease
agreement, the Company would remain obligated edahdlord for payment of amounts due under theele@he terms of
these assigned leases can extend up to the yedr 282of February 1, 2014, these leases have fuhinimum lease
payments of $150.1 million (February 2, 2013: $838illion), of which $145.4 million (February 2, 28: $180.4 million),
relates to leases assigned to Target, in additoother lease related expenses, such as propedy tmd common area
maintenance. The Company’s obligation would beebdffsy payments from existing or future assigneesthair obligations
to the Company to comply with the assigned leaBetential liabilities related to these guarante@y e subject to certain
defenses by the Company. The Company does not ekpenake any significant payments with respecthiese lease
obligations and believes that the risk of significkoss is low.

In connection with the sale of leasehold intergst§arget, the Company has indemnified Target um tmaximum of
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$1,825.0 million in respect of any damages ariding any failure to comply with any representat@mwarranty under the

transaction agreement to be true, any failure efGompany to fulfill any of its obligations unddéetagreement, the use of
any of the leased properties prior to transfer aog&t, environmental liabilities associated witly afithe leased properties,
and any liabilities associated with the leased prigs not assumed by Target.

From time to time, Saks has issued guaranteesntiolias under leases of stores operated by itsidiaties. Certain of
these stores were sold in connection with the shtbe Saks Department Store Group to Belk, In20A5 and the sale of
the Northern Department Store Group to The Bon-Boores, Inc. in 2006. If the purchasers fail tofqgen certain
obligations under the leases guaranteed, the Coyrgzarid have obligations to landlords under suchrgotees. The terms
of these guaranteed leases can extend up to the2§24. As of February 1, 2014, these leases hatveef minimum lease
payments of $104.8 million. Based on the informatcurrently available, the Company does not belignat its potential
obligations under these lease guarantees wouldaberia.

In the normal course of business, the Company hésrexl into agreements pursuant to which the Coynpmavides
indemnification commitments to counterparties. Eheslemnification commitments require the Compamycampensate
counterparties for costs incurred as a result eibines of representations or warranties, chandawor regulations or as a
result of litigation claims that may be suffered twe counterparty as a result of the transactidre Tompany also has
director and officer indemnification agreementseTlrms of the indemnification commitments will yavased on the
contract. Given the nature of these indemnificabommitments, the Company is unable to estimateri@e@mum potential
liability but does not expect to make any significpayments with respect to these commitments.

NOTE 26. SEGMENTED REPORTING

The Company has one reportable segment, DepartBtenes, which earns revenue from the sale of fashioparel,
accessories, cosmetics and home products to custame similar target market. The Department St@egment which
includes Hudson’s Bay, L&T, Home Oultfitters, Saksl@®FF 5TH, is managed by the Chief Operating Decidaker and
supported by an integrated shared services function

The following summarizes retail sales from contimuoperations, total operating income from contigubperations and
total assets by geographic area:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
Total retail sales
(O 1T To - NP PUUSUUUPRPRN 2,718.7 2,614.5
0] 011 (=10 IS = L (T J SRRt 2,504.7 1,462.5

5,223.4 4,077.0

2012
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 see note 2(2))
Total operating income (loss)
(O 1T To - NP PUUSUPUORPR 38.3 27.4
UNITEO STALES ... s e e (31.2) 88.1
7.1 115.5
2012
(restated —
see note
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2(2))
Non-current asset
(OF-T T To - NPT 694.8 623.1
L0 T (T B = L (Y TP TSURUPTIRN 4,622.9 957.0

5,317.7 1,580.1

Total assets

(OF= 14 = (o £ NP PRSPPIt 1,749.3 1,887.3
L0011 (=To IR = L (TP UOP PO 6,177.7 1,360.3

7,927.0 3,247.6

(1) Excludes deferred tax assets and pensions and yeepienefit
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NOTE 27. SUBSIDIARIES

Entities controlled by HBC are included in thesasalidated financial statements. Control existemthe Company has the
ability to direct the relevant activities and tle¢urn of an entity. The financial statements afsantities are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the datérobnommences until the date that control ceaSemificant subsidiaries

of the Company are:

Ownership
interest
Country of
incorporation and
Name of subsidiary operation 2013 2012
=] 1= 3 1 o o U PPPP Canada 100% 100%
(o]0 [/ -\ o o I TR United States  100% 100%
[ I = (T o Tolo T I X PO URTUTPPPRTPIN United States  100% 100%
LT 424 LLC .. e ettt e e oo e et e ettt e et b et a e e e e e e e e e e e eebnebaa s United States  100% 100%
ST R L oto] g oTo] -1 (=To EO PP United States  100%  —

NOTE 28. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company has substantively completed the disagation of its discount store business which cstesi of the Zellers
and Fields banners. The plan was approved by ¢timep@ny’s Board of Directors on April 19, 2012. Tdexision followed
the sale of certain Zellers’' leasehold interestsTéwget (the “Target Transaction”). As a resulttbése changes, the
Company has reflected the discount store operatismiscontinued operations in the consolidateérskants of loss.

The results of operations relating to discontinapdrations were as follows:

2012
(restated — see

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 note 2(z))
Net loss from discontinued operations, Net Of taXeS.......covviiiiiieiiiiie e (111.1) (244.4)
Sale of leasehold interests, Net Of tAXES....uucueiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 28.7 181.5
Net loss for the year — discontinued operations, h®f taXesS...........ccceeeeeveeecccceeme s, (82.4) (62.9)

Net earnings from the sale of leasehold interestiiscal 2013 were $28.7 million (2012: $181.5 roill), net of income
taxes of $4.6 million (2012: $16.9 million). Neskfrom discontinued operations is as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012
RETAI SAIES ...t a e e e e e —————— 145.8 2,374.5
COSt OF SAIES ... (162.4) (1,778.2)
Selling, general and administrative EXPENSES.........c.vveiiie it (127.0) (935.9)
(@] T=T -\l o N (o TSP SUPPRPN (143.6) (339.6)
FINANCE INCOMIE ..ottt et e e s e bee e e e s e e e et e e e e e e nnnaeeas — 0.4
LOSS DEFOIE INCOME TAX. .. iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e e e et b nrree e, (143.6) (339.2)
INCOME taX DENETIL ... e 32.5 94.8
NEL I0SS fOF thE YBAL....eiii ittt e et s e (111.1) (244.4)

Historically, the Zellers and Fields banners wellecated overhead and shared services costs inrdamoce with the
Company’s cost sharing agreements. Certain of tbeses do not qualify as discontinued operationthag are not directly
attributable to the discount store operations. €quently, operating income related to continuingrafons may not be
indicative of future operating results.

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

The consolidated balance sheet for February 1, 2&flects assets and liabilities relating to thecdintinuance of the Zellers
and Fields businesses. The following table setsfmiassets and liabilities relating to Zellersl &elds businesses as at
February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013.
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(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013 2012

Trade and other receiVabIES ...........ooiieeeere e 213 10.8
1Yo 01T TP PUP SRR — 151.5
Other CUMENT @SSEIS ...ttt — 4.7
INCOmMeE taxes reCoVerable ........ ..o — 62.2
Property, plant and @qUIPMENT ...... ... oot _ 19.4
Deferred taX @SSEIS ....uuiiiii ittt s e e e e e — 19.9
Other asSets - NON-CUIMENT ...........uii e — 0.1
Assets of discontinued OPEratioNS...........ccoiiuiiiiiiiiiii et e e e 23 268.6
Trade payables 4.2 41.6
Other payables and accrued liabilities.......cccceoceviiiiiiiii e 7.0 100.6
PrOVISIONS = CUMTENLE .....eeiiiiiiie it mmmmm sttt e e s e s 76.9 184.9
ProVISIONS - NON-CUITENT.......otiiieiiiieceeeeree et e e nneees 0.8 11.7
Other IaDIlItIES..........coviiiiiiicii _ 4.1
Liabilities of discontinued OPerationS...........cooeariiiiiiiiiiiie e 88.9 342.9

Sale of Leasehold Interests

On January 13, 2011, HBC announced an agreememtTaitget to sell leasehold interests in a numbeétsaZellers store
locations.

Accordingly the Company is recognizing in discongd operations proceeds for the assignment ofethsek, operating the
selected stores over the closure period, transfgthie properties in broom swept condition andttiertransfer of pharmacy
records. On October 3, 2011, the Company alloc&&H0 million of the proceeds for the transfer dfapnacy records
which was to be recognized upon the closing ofréieted stores. However, on January 20, 2012, tmepany and Target
amended the sales agreement and the requiremgahsfer the pharmacy records was eliminated fasickeration of $10.0

million which was paid to Target in September 201Ruring fiscal 2012, the Company sold the re-aeglipharmacy

records and recognized a gain of $41.0 million.

During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company recogn§22i4 million and $271.5 million of proceeds, resjvely.

In connection with the transaction, the Companygedzed nil (2012: $51.1 million) related to empeyseverance costs
and $0.2 million gain (2012: $1.5 million loss)atdd to the accelerated amortization of rent rdlatsets and liabilities.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment assgediavith discontinued operations was nil (2012:.$31illion).
NOTE 29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 20, 2014, HBC's Board of Directors dedfbaedividend of $0.05 per common share, payablépii 15, 2014 to
shareholders of record as of March 31, 2014.

On February 3, 2014, the Company repaid a mortgatganding (see note 14) with a final balloon pagtrof $9.6 million.

On February 25, 2014, the Company sold its downt®aronto flagship retail complex and the Simpsdrosver located at
401 Bay Street to an affiliate of The Cadillac Few Corporation Limited for a purchase price of5@® million. The

Company has leased the entire retail and officeptexrback for a base term of twenty-five years wéhewal options of up
to approximately twenty-five years. Proceeds oftthasaction were used to retire in entirety th&qhiTerm Loan, currently
bearing interest at a rate of 8.25%, and permangaty down U.S.$150.0 million of the Senior TermahoB, currently

bearing interest at a rate of 4.75%. The balandbehet proceeds were used to reduce the outsthbdiance of the HBC
Revolving Credit Facility. Over time, a portion tfie proceeds will be used to fund the Companyategiic capital

investments including the expansion of Saks Fiftredue into Canada and growth initiatives such a€HBgital and the
OFF 5TH businesses. As part of this transactionCH8Il open a full-line Saks store in the Torontad$on's Bay flagship
store. The approximately 150,000 square-foot, rtetel Saks is planned to open in the spring of&2@hd will be co-
located with the current Hudson's Bay store. lditaah, the Company has also agreed to lease spaberonto’'s Sherway
Gardens for a second Saks Fifth Avenue store imdan
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